Registered in England and Wales
Company Registration No: 3899848

" DIPLOMA

DELIVERS

*AC6QKPEH*
AO8 #36

29/06/2023
COMPANIES HQUSE

THURSDAY

DIPLOMA PLQ

Annual ker




CONTENTS
Strategic Report

Diplema at a Glance
Highlights

What we do

Our Business Modet

Chair’s Statement

CEQ's Review

Strategy

Delivering Value Responsibly
Key Performance Indicators
Sector Reviews

Section 172 Staterment

Q&A With Our New CFO
Financial Review

Internal Control and Risk
Management

Viability Statement

Governance

0
?2
@4
102
108
14
139

Chair’s Introduction to Governance
Governance at a Glance

Board of Directors

Audit Committee Report
Nomination Committee Report
Remuneration Committee Report
Directors’ Report

Financial Statements

142
143

143

144

145
146

170
176

176
177
179
187
190

192

Consclidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Consolidated Cash Flow Staterment
Notes to the Consolidated
financial Statements

Group Accounting Policies
Parent Company Statement of
Financial Position

Parent Company Staterment of
Changes in Equity

Notes to the Parent Company
Financial Statements
Independent Auditors’ Report
Subsidiaries of Diploma PLC
Financial Calendar, Shareholder
Information and Advisors
Five-Year Record




EVERYTHING WE DO IS
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means our businesses are customer-
oriented, cccountable and empowered to deliver.
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QOur businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

Technical expertise 2 Determined to get better
every day

yoday 216a30a1g

Service-led propositions Accountability Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions 2 Doing the right thing

TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH
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15-year EPS CAGR: 15%
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HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth

15%

fiéport-é_a revenue growth

Qo

heA ol 10

Adjusted operating margin'

18 9%

Model 1772

Adjusted EPS growth!

Free cash flow conversion’

O

Mol co Q07+

Our Colleagues

We have worked hard to retain
great talent by engaging
colleagues across the Group. Our
Engagement Index is testament
to our businesses’ efforts.

Our Customers

Responsive customer service is
one of the key ways that our
businesses deliver value, we are
proud that they are recognised
by their customers.

ROATCE'

1/.5%

Maocel: High teens

Dividend cover'

2 OX

Mamel oo

Qur Suppliers

Buring the year, our businesses
have engaged their key suppliers
meaningfully on human rights,
labour laws and the environment
through our Supplier Code.

QOur Communities

As o decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
communities and causes that
matter most to our businesses.
We will continue to match cur
businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

FY 2022 Fy 2021 % chonge

21,002 80 2SR L [P

P19 2

Fidd 2




/9%

Collezgus Engagemient ndex

"Since beginning a business
relationship with Hercules OFEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relationship grow into a true
partnership. Over the years the level

|.'r

of service has continued to excel,

Meptung, o dercuales OV custamer

Key suppliers igertited

/9%

Irirese o donatiors 1o fw‘\
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FOR OUR

STAKEHOLDERS

KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR
LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATION STORY

Qur business modei

Our strategy

Delivering value responsitly
Sector reviews
Governanee
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WHAT WE DO

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Qur value-add distribution model
underpins everything we do and
's the foundation of the Group's
success. We supply products

and services critical to custorner
needs. Our service component
builds loyalty and resilience,
pricing power and margins.
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WHAT WE

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our number
one priority. All of our businesses
have fantastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
revenue diversification to drive
organic growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating

in fragmerted markets, we also
seek to make complementary
acquisitions to accelerate
organic growth.
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~ ORGANIC GROWTH
. SCALE
RESPONSIBLY
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

v ..
As our businesses grow afif g
scale, they need to evolive their
operating model to continue to
deliver their value-add custormer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evalving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey

1o scale.

16 Diplarns PLC Annual Report 2022
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POSITIVE IMPACT
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our ESG frermework, puts
environmental and social
impact at the forefront of our
strategy and culture, We are
focused on the key areas in
which we can make g difference
to our colleagues, customers
cand suppliers, communities,
anthareholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES

OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.

empowered teams




WE DELIVER
FOR QUR
STAKEHOLDERS

THE GRQUP

o]

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

MIIAIDA

Build Diploma idendilys
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but

share the same inherent values - they are
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered  Boardchanges
to deliver for their customers. e e o e e

RIS [ S

Colleagues and culture

:

Very strong financial performance,
excellent strategic progress
- 2 -
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David Lowden

Chair

Outlook



CEO’'S REVIEW

| am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colieagues do a brilliant job — thank you.

Very strong results and excellent A very strong ﬁnuncnul performance
struteglc progress _— e 4 ) o

R PR N

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
bulldmg scole und mcreasmg resul:ence

1. Positioning behlnd hugh growth end
segments T vl

Renewoble ehergy cnd mfrustructure
Organic growth mvestment _ A : 2Tl LT

1 5 Acceleratmg dlcgnostncs spendlng

Very strong organic growth driven by

our revenue initiatives, positive demand

and pricing 2. Geographic penetration of core
deveioped economies: . =73
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CEC’'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

Portfolio discipline QOperational excellence:

Secaling our volue-added businesses
and the Group
Scalmg our value added busmesses - Talent: .

Fuc:llty

e
and

e
Two smal} bo'lt-ons ot R&G (Seals)

[ ST

S I SR T

We have maintained high-teens
margins of

18 9%




Scaling the Group

Increasing resilience underpins our
outicok

wiodoy 216210435

Delivering Value Responsibly:
embedding into our commercial
strategy and culture

We have grown EPS by

Jehnny Thomson
O/ Chief Executive Officer

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record
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STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses
for sustainable organic growth

Compounding
1. Revenue diversification Financial
to drive organic growth Model

‘ Org;:;c _‘

‘ growth ‘

|

accelerate organicgrowth - [SEEEEEmwdE

‘ growth

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

5. Delivering Value Responsibly

27 Droer s P00 Annucl Report 2022



1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Qur strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

O 02 03

Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally

high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses

many of which also have of North America, Europe and at portfolio level.

a positive impact on the and Australia where there

environment or society. is significant potential to

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:

TARGET:
MID-SINGLE DIGIT

ORGANIC GROWTH

MIIAIBAQD
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate
organic growth

Focused portfolio developrment is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O 02 03

Acquisitions to A disciplined Success factors
accelerate organic approach

growth

[ A T AL e X

Target attributes

i . . “: ',“T“-:—' B B e o e I R
N -t 1 0
- - "l j Lo
Strotegically & financially disciplined
NI Sl P S I M TS M ol S P L
"Our approach to acquisitions Historic M&A spend (£m}
has become more structured 2012 2013 2014 2015 00 2007 2018 2013 2020 2021 2022

and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take

A462.2
|
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”
78.5
Steve Sorgeont, 22.3 — 527 204 204 .
- 16.5 - - 14.9
Corporate Development 2o e T e E e

Director



CASE STUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

MIIAIRAD

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group’s exposure to high growth end segments.
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in lreland: Acquisition of LIR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed economies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

MR \
ACCUSCIENCE =, 7
LK
- TR LA ME ST DL UTION T

Characteristics:

ST T B T A

Value drivers:

- v

Portfolio fit: . L cem e e -




CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluid Power Group (R&G), a high-
auality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
in the UK, for ca. £100m.

MBIAIBAD

R&G is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
nydraulic and prneurnatic products (including seals and
gaskets). Its value-added proposition is based on responsive
custormer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
product customisation. Over time, the management team has
built o platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through consolidating a number of regional distributors to
extend gecgraphic and product reach.

yoday aiBainng
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
journey to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market




4, Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group's success.

1loday 21baypag

O
]
=
o
o
=
=]
P
]
[n]
o
<
1]
=
3
a
3
[2]
®

Scaling
the Group
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY [N ACTION:
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
platform for growth and building leadership networks




31

CASE STUDY

Talent

“Investing in talent is critical to the

sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director
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STRATEGY
COMTINUFD

5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment, Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.
=

i ”2
AN
et ]
A IPIL

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

Z2  Diploma PLC Annusl Report 2022
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By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive Impact
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Read about our performance in each of our focus areas O

on pages 36-47. ;5-

°

3

e

Our businesses have established DVR committees and Read more about our DVR metrics and targets on g
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53. "5*.
progress against targets. =

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procedures on pages 50-57.
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DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
OUR COLLEAGUES
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Our colleagues are the foundation of our
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

Qur decentralsed bsqu cmploys ca. 3,000

leagues acress multiole businesses,
geographies anc cormmunities. This year, we
welcomed oo 500 rew colleagles through
acquisitions, The safety, wellbeing and
ergacerment of those colleagues is our
primary concern ane centil 1o hows we
deliver vaue.

attracting arnd relairing takent
VITDNrmient

Divelopirg,
nan sguiteile ancinglosive or
welll support 2 seale, and s an
irnportart difterentiator iea challengirg
lcbeor mmarket . Protecting our cqite ana
andlerping
EEPIRSTRIN

89%

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Brilliant leadership
Our decentralized moael mears that cur
Serior Leadership Tearn (B0 plavs akey
sning the culture cnd strateqy
. ell oz the perfarmisrce
susinesscs and Sectors, Our SUT
comptised o our Fxecutive team, the
Mamg'\ng Cirectors of our businesses and
ey Group rales  has dermmonstrated Brilliont
\Pmdm[,)‘\ > during FY22, continuing to look
after ond suppart our collcogues, scrve our
custorness and show great agility and
resilience cespite geopolitical and economic
uneertaintiez.

.‘.' T.h;H
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In June this year, we brought together

members of the 5LT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT's first
time meeting in person since the
pandemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior leaders

Building engaging and fulfilling careers

He continue 1o evalye our cLltnre ond

:JCQ,WC re . ,iHE 5 EVEry
year and give coreful consideration Lo now
we cnioors callecg.es that join us through
acquisition.

Group internal comrnunicationr is a po

1ol for ws - our CEC updotes cur ro\lec-\_j Les

directly thiough quarterly uld e
informaltion is shared o LG i
Sectors throagh our interral newslotte:, This
year we introduced a learning mancgerment
systermn, whichin currenthy being rolled oot
arrass the Group,

Daveloprmient of talent supporis our
stratogy, cecpens engogarment anc i
irnportart at every level of our bsine

Mary of our callmqw o5 undergo on 1h~- fols)
trainirg, whether through apprenticeships
or oxternal certificatior. Throagh cur DWR
programme, we have started to develop
metworks thet focilitate knowledy
across certain functions such as Hec'th &

sharing

Sa‘ety, Supply Chain Managermsnt, ana HR.

Mentul health and wellbeing
sreirdful of the
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Qur vision is for all of cur colleagues
to be highly engaged

2022 Highlights

- 86% response rate

- 79% colleague engogement index

- 70% of Group colleagues are
active on our new learning
management system

86%

response rate

/9%

engagement index

KP}

Engagement Index

{on externally benchmarked score
from our annual engagement survey}

Target
Maintain an engagement index
of 70%+

Ongoing Focus

- Build out our learning management
system

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental health

— HR network to support best
practice

- Continued leadership developrnent

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our
colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products
and markets. In a challenging labour market,
engagement helps us to hold onto that
talent, knowledge and expertise.

Action during 2022

et

“It's really important to us that
we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director




CASE STUDY
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group
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75%:

2022 75
2021 73

all of our businesses achieved an
engagement index within a range
of 75-85%

Learning and development

70% +4% e R _:
O/ 2022 70 L I ot L R T e N
O 2021 66
“ like that | can act on behalf

of our colleagues believe that their Wellbeing of my collquues to voice their
work is meaningful, accerding to our : .
engagement survey 79% 41% concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
2022 79 response to each issue right

2021 78 there in the meeting so it gets
O/ sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
O SEY LTI Oel DY ESUINS e i all the branches of the business

are there together at the
meeting - whether it's a
finance issue, a management
issue, or a warehouse issue.”

of our colieagues believe that their D SR
manager empowers them, according oL e
to our engagement survey [ ot

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Operative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

Qurvision is thet no ene is harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
LnERsiies s aDiploma business.

- More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- Improvernent in potential
hazard reporting

— Improved governance at business
and Sector level

10.6

LT rate

449,

reduction in severity rate

Action during 2022

‘ |

KP1

Lost time incident (LTl) Rate
{(number of lost time incidents per
1,000 employees)

FY23 Target

5% year-on-year reduction in LTl rate ) - s R .
Ongoing Focus Tl g i e O
- Build positive mental health R R N -
and wellbeing A L B P O

- Continuous improvement and focus R

on Health & Sofety culture of colleagues feel that Health &
~ Ensure process in picce to reduce Safety is token seriously in their
risks identified by potential hazard business, according to our Colleague

reporting Engagement Survey
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Group performance stats
LTl rate

Severity rate

Potential hazards




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

We remain committed to better

Sg;gjzircc):f;,}ar?e?:icljl C‘ofd(;‘:Jerrcs:leeogues, representotion across our Group Ond
feel able te bring their full setv H 1 H
e e e ol selres o businesses, particularly in management

and leadership positions.

2022 Highlights

- New Group Diversity, Equity
& Inclusion Policy

- Unconscious bias workshops

— Training for Senior Leadership
Team on inclusive leadership

- Etbnicity reporting

Gender diversity (as at 30 September)

Ma'e  Female

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are women

KPl
% of women on the Senior
Management Tecrn

FY30 Target
Women represent 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus
- Succession planning

- Irmpiementing the Diversity, Equity e ot Ethnic diversity {as at 30 September)
and Inclusion Policy across the Group
- Further learning and knowtedge FProfer

i Mg n- Ethnic "o te
Shormg rononts minority e Totas
O/ s N 0 . -
s - 13 o z

of external hires into the e e
Senior Management Team during the SPR L
year were women Cee e e

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity

Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Prefer mot to say  15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Wornen 43% Women 31%

CASE STUDY
International
Women’s Day

w3
+
2
&)
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International Wornen's day was
celebrated by businesses across the Group
on 8th March 2022,

Businesses brought their teoms together

at lunches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events te discuss bias and the
challenges faced by wormen in the workplace.

All colleagues were also given the
oppeortunity to attend o #BreakTheBias
workshop, which highlighted exarmples of
uncenscious bias and the rele that we can
all play in tackling it ot work,



GELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
COMNIINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Caleuletion of cur Scope 5 emissions is a
compliczied Lndertaking ir o decentralised
Oroup, such s Ve are working to do
this akecd o submitting a net zero target
to the Science-Based Targets Initiative (SBTI)
Auring Fr23

Thee clirrate crisis is urgent and giobsal, vee
recognise the irmpact of our wider “ootprint
and the narr GV v of opportunity
tomake o positive contribution ie tackling
this crizie. Beyord the mora sbligation that
won focl, we alse see the contribution to the
i ovalue creatior and grawth of oa-

Our colleagues are ircreasingty passionate
shout cimate change ard expect the Gr

T drive progress ard support their initiatives,

There s clso the oppartanity 1o del ver

value to our cLstarmers by offering more
sustainable products and solutions, bailding
Gt knowledae anc expertise, and work g
ter e o more carbon s Hiciert business that
car sapport their net zero goals.

Our positive Imnpact reverue inilic v
{or commer
2 Impoet or sednty

anc the ervircnment.

yoday mibajoiyg




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY

CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Cur vision is for alt of our key suppliers
to be compliant with our Supplier Code.

2022 Highlights

- Active engagement with our
suppliers on the environment

- Key suppliers identified and the
process has started te align with
our Supplier Code

59%

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KP1
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target
80% of key suppliers are aligned with
our Supplier Cede

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
emissions

Management of our supply chain is key

to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our
strategy and commercial proposition. Our
focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
climate change and reduce our own impact
through more sustainable packaging,
logistics and products.

Percentage of identified key suppliers TR RS O
aligned with our Supplier Code - T

Key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code 59%




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zerc across our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our vatue
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions fiat, excluding the impoct
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions

10,615

Tonnes CO,e

Emissions KPI

% reduction of Scope 1aond 2
emissions (tonnes CO,e) ogainst FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes CO.e)

Waste KPI
% of total waste to londfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1 &2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste 1o landfill

Cngoing Focus

- Set SBTi net zero torget

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes 1, 2& 3

- Divert waste frorm landfill

- Set out @ clear readmap to
our 2030 targets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and will
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.

. L. S

em e T 3256 1iic
- 7,359 - e
10,615 -~ - ¢ 27

Tonnes COe per £1m revenue Purchased electricity kWh

10.5 14,033,971

2022 . 2022
2021 . 2021
2020 . 2020

14,033,971
13,947,147

7,762,447

Gross emissions

10,615

2022
2021
2020

4,331

n
+
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Q
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packoging initiatives are being put in place
across the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating a more circular
packaging system.

Some businesses have invested in shredding
machines in order to reuse incoming
cardboard packaging as packing maoterial
for outgoing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclable
elements from their packaging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape — removing
more than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scheme has completely
removed branding from all packaging. By
working clasely with our suppliers 10 have
products delivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and customers.

Al of these Initiotives support our ambition
1o reduce our waste-to-landfill and overall
waste. It also supports our custorners in
ochieving their own net zerc and waste
reduction initiatives.



47  Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benefits from more efficient heating and cooling,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve bicdiversity in the surrounding area by

sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

F &

woday nbeanais N




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT
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Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Positive inmpact revenue is generated

all businesses from the sale of products,
services and sclations that benefit aur
scoiety ar ervimonrmsnt and seppont thees
trarsiticr: o amions sustainchile ratore
Growth initatives in those arcas offor o key
opportunity 1o positively impact cur
stokeholders.

Theraare huge sppoartunitios

ir the soae of transl t
create arors sestairatde, o corbon

Sl Teetes

el ol

ornrmunities,
such sz the highly-strandad silicane coble,
supplied by our Contrals Sectar, thot is used
in deficrilatars and ECO electrodes.

49 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Our Lite Sciences businesses offer dingnostia
szlutions that make it quicker ard ecsier Lo
igentity life-threatening diseases, including
cutting-e shnology that allows for
early detectior o diseazes in rewbaorns, and
horne: tastirg kits for remate cormmuritios,

Our MRO scals business
As ans tradomarks
ally designed to preve

b = nd segrmests as we wark
with our suppliers ard their irdustries 1o
innovate new, spedclised products anda
solutinns.

Qur positive impact revence streams are
an irmportant component of cur organic
growih stratecy ard eact Sector has
grosaeth plors in place.,

yioday 216a1013g




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS
RESPONSIBLY
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Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance
Owr DvR governonce structure is lear and
fects our decentialized madel The Group
; o direction
steart, ondd the Board has citimate
gt and recponsibiity for DVR aoross
the Group,

Operational ex=cution tokes placo ir o
b 5imes e 10 DL astarmie s,
Maruagir s dors are respunsible far DR
serformance o their wisl S0 are given
Hexiblity 1o pricritise DY smoarens indine
wilk rrateriality 1o their nusicess. Targets
cre set at Group ard Secior levet and the
Fxeactivie toar, which includes the Sroup
CEO ard Sector CECs, = responaible for
within their arca of
rezponsbility.
I line with cur 2027 pledge, VR FPLs are now
integrated inta cur regulc
reporting, including b i wicdates an
our ermissions Our 257 eport their
arnissions cata guarterly to the Group,
whore it s revicwsed by the somior inonce
tearm and managed for impraverneet by
the Secter leadership tearm.

Paositive Iniparst Reverae data is collected
froen each bisiress and analysad twice 2

yeor as port Gl managerment reporting. This

aralysis s consicered o useful toal Tor
assessing clirmate rzlated risks anc
apportenitizs, This datais reviswad by the

ctors, Group Finance, OVR steering
cammittee and the Boord.

Thie role of the TWR Stzering Committen,
webich is chairea by the Group CECY s to
outlire Group strategy against the DVE
frarmevasrk, set Oroup initistives and

targets, suppaort the Sactors ana usinesses,

and monitor and cormmuniccte progress.
The challznge of ¢ cecentralised business
con ke to ersure allgrment with Grocp
ob'ective o ariee meaningtul progre
Corurenication is koy to the offectivenass
of DVR roansgerent adioss the Group are
OWVR features neovily inregalar intermal and
SLT cormmmomications

Qur Senior {eadership Team (SLT3, which
includos busirese MOs s wadated guarterly

on DVE during regular SUT updatzs fronn the

CED. They aso attend in-depth sessicn:
with rmemiess of the DYR Steering
Cornmitise to review performance and
DVR govarmanes, receive cpdates on VR
stroteqy and policy changes, and share

their successes and best practice,

The Executive tcarmn is updated or OVR
along with the 5T kot also hale nore
detailed soasions aigrnually as poart of the
Erecutive Meetings. Sector CEOs meet
Bianrually with the OVR Steering
Corrirrittee for o DVR Goverrarce mseting
to discuss DVR strategy, goverranae,
climete-related risks and opportunities,
and review progress anc intlictives.

The Baard holds an annual DYR session to
reviews DVR strateqy, chijectives and
pragress, Clirmate-related risk maragernont
is integrotea into Oroup risk management,

1loday 216a1baig




DELIVERING WAl LIS RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUFED

Our DVR governance structure

Diploma PLC
: Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework J

Group DVR
governance

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Executive
team

Reporting & —
performance €

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& support

\)

Development of

DVR networks .
Business

<~ MDs&DWR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-related
risks & opportunities

T

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

Identification &
management of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

T

DVR performance and
intiatives

[dentification and
management of climate-
related risks




Our metrics and targets

Dariong &t vsion

voday nibaiong

Responsible business
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD): our response
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Qur policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPis

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Group's
nurnper one priority. We focus on
products and solutions which are
critical to customers’ needs, giving
resilience to revenues. We target
mid-singie digit organic growth.

&%

Five-year overage

Reported revenue growth

We aim to deliver sustainabie double-
digit growtn through o combination
of organic growth and high-guality,
value-enhancing acquisitions which
accelercte our organic growth.

18%

Five-year compound

BN
@
~
0
k] !
i :

Adjusted operating margin

Cur differentiated value- added
sclutions and customer-focused
approach drive customer loyalty

and cregte pricing power, supporting
sustginakble and attractive margins.
We target a margin of 17/%-+.

B 9 20 2
179% :
Five-year average . i

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth s o measure of how
successful we have been in growing
orgaaically and through acquisition,
incleding copital cllecation and tax
comsiderations. We target dooble-digit
EPS growth.

17%

Five-year compound

-
-0
o

Free cash flow conversion

A strong balance sheet and cash flow
Lund our growth strategy and provide
nealtny, growng dividends. We target
free casn flow conversion of 0%+

21 22

18

96%

Five-year average

w20
i
~

ROATCE
Thic ~Measures Nowy successTuwe are at
generat ng returns on the investments we

~nake. We 1arget ROATCE i the high teens,

18

20.2%

Five-year average

1 2 0N 22
i
i Rl B

o
an
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NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

CUR COLLEAGUES

Engogement index
An externally benchmarked score from our
annual engagement survey

TARGET
maintain; O /o I
2 22

£

% women on the Senior Management
Team (SMT)

Lost time incident (LTI} rate
Number of LTis per 1,00C ermployees

TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction 40()/
o+

21 22

20 21 22

24%

OUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code’

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with
Supplier Code by FY30

59%

% of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1& 2 emissions

against FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET

50%

reductionin Scope 1 &2
ermissions

FY30 TARGET

<15%

waste to landfill

7027

60%

2077 {baseiine year)

10,615..co.

CETLTECEG.Riio L e GIxeIred

foaLp e sne o tn Lsapphers were 13en hed orrass Trie SrolL

g

1oday o1baypiyg MBIAIBAQ
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR
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The Controls Sector
businesses supply
specialised wiring,
cable, connectors,
fasteners, control
devices and adhesives
for a range of
technically demanding

applications.

Windy City Wire (WCW): 50%
iu a'ue adoed
oY “rpwrnu T opaality
caable

L comprebersive

QeErment Syslarms e

grifoant tirmc and cott
savings far customers,

Wire & Cable (UK): 9%

Zialist and Hexibl: cak =

: ticn, termination and
rmoncgernent products, aricd
cable rmanagearment solutions
corost o broad boss of
costomiers ir Lurape.

Interconnect: 22%
Harnass compenerits ancd
qvv»;r'\a\iii COMMECLars ues in
y demanding
CrS ACToss mdnp\e
in furcps and the JS.
'upul\,« ARSSTRIST
-ft ord valee add
cno prgducts incl_dirg
colive sleeving, cut-to-
th tubing, kitting, connector
o J,ur‘\b ard pratotype
cuantities of customised
mlti-core cobles.

Specialty Fasteners: 10%
Specially, premsian quatity
f nIrs together with
Isuppart, guality
Foatior and other
calus-aadec
custorners in Civil fie
Motorspart, Defeng
general Indostrial.
sepport key custormerns wits
s astoniated irver
reslznishrment salaticns,

Fluid Controls: 6%
Fliig controflers, compressorns,

AT mar\t ’Jowrﬁ
nnd specialised liguid dispensing
COMEPONents orrms
customers in the LK Food &
Bevercge sacton

Adhesives: 3%

Specichty silice adhesives
i s tegether with
techmcal support and otrer
value-cdded sarvices
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Revenue by segment’

22%

10%

9%
® 5% ¢
® 3% Adresives

Revenue by geography’

58% '\J b Arparica

23% .

16% Jortinental B
& 3% Othor

Reported revenue (fm)

(compound growth over fve vears)

+30% p.a.

2

492.8

o]

MBIAIBA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FY 2021

£343.3m
+16%

£724m  +46%
211% +40bps

FY 2022

£492.8m
+24%

£105.8m
21.5%

Change in the year

+44%

Revenue

Organic revenue
growth

Adjusted operating
profit

Adjusted operating
margin

“Qur International Controls

businesses have shown
tremendous energy in
building momentum - it's
been great to see their hard
work pay off this past year.

1

- Share gains in high growth end markets

and campelling customer proposition
driving an excellent WCW performance:
organic revenue growth 32%, including
double-digit volume growth

- International Controls organic growth

- Product extension: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business line,
with a bolt-on acquisition to add scale
and diversity end markets

18%, with accelerating growth in
attractive end segments while also

David Geoode
broadening US and European exposure

Secter CEQ, Controls

Sector financial performance

Interconnect - s

O M

¥ =

“It's been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

Rich Galgano
CEO, Windy City Wire

Specialty Fosteners =— . --=2 — . =0




§trategic progress CASE STUDY O
e High growth end §
markets 2

Flui

1oday a1bainig

Our Adhesives business delivered »20%
organic growth, helped by exposure to high
growth end markets. Our products and
solutions have many applications, including
in electronic control units for electric and
autonomous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections os part of a large scale fibre
optic roll-out in the UK by @ maojor
telecormmunications company.

Read more
diploraplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
controls
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| SECTOR REVIEW




The Seals Sector
businesses supply a
range of seals, gaskets,
cylinders, components
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and
a diverse range of fluid
power products with
Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

international Seals: 47%
Our Seals biss in Furope
ard Austraiia sepply seals,
gaskets, pumnps cne related
accassories, custom-maulced
and machinzc ports, bvcreulic
cylindor comporents, anc 9
diverse rarge of fiuid power
products to Aftermarket, OFM
anel MRO custoniers,

North American
Aftermarket: 23%

Supplies ¢ variety of seals,
genrerally on o next-day basis,
for a broad rarge of mobile
machinery dsed in hegvy
Corstruction, Mining ard
Agriculture, Products are used
in repair and maintencroe af ler
equipment has completed i
initiol warrarty perioc or been
sold on the pre used market,
Customears are mainly repair
shops, engine ana transmission
rebuilders and olher heavy
equiprnent parts distributors,

US Industrial OEM: 18%
Suppdies secls, gaskets, O rings
and custom-rmoclced and
machines parts, The business
warks closely with customers to
specify the most appropriate
seal desigr, material and
manciacturer for the
application; provides tocknico
swpport during product
developrmert; and delivers the
logistics capabilities ta support
srrall to medium-sized
production rums.

US Maintenance, Repair &
Overhaul (MRO): 12%

Our MRC business, WSP
Technolegies (VOP), supplies
high quality goskets and fuid
sea'ing products 13 critical
services in high cost of failure
applicctions. The business wiorks
directly with custormrs 1o
irmurove sealing pe:farmance,
providing expertise, product
recommendations and trairing.
V5P sells primarily to
transportation, chenic sl
processing, powar ana maring
Custarners,

65 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Revenue by segment’

Intermational Secls
NA Aftermarket
L& Industricl OFM
LS MRO

Revenue by geography’

& 50% MNorth Armerica
37% Jk & Europs
13% Internaticnal

Reported revenue (£m)
{cormpound gg'c:wth aver five yeors)

+11% p.a.

22 3314

o

MDA IBA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FY 2021

£331.4m £263.7m
+14% +7/%

£62.6m £46.5m

18.9% 17.6%
“The team has been the

standout highlight of my - Geographic penetration: Louisville giving

Change in the year

+26%

Revenue

Organic revenue
growth

Adjusted operating
profit

+35%
+130bps

Adjusted operating
margin

broaden the Seals product portfolio into

first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like

access to previously untapped Western
and Midwestern states, driving
accelerated market share gains in North
American Aftermarket

Diversification in growth end segments:
International Seals crganic growth 1%

pneurnatics, expanding addressable
markets

- Building scale: acquisition of ACT,

a supplier of innovative anti-corrosion
products and solutions, adds further scale
to the high quality platform for growth

to thank them ali for their
commitment.”

we have built in Australia over the last
three years

with broad-based growth against o
strong comparator
- Product extension: strategic acquisition of
Ted Messiner R&G in April 1o build scale in the UK and

Sector CEQ, North American Seals

Sector financial performance
[P - T

e

2022 was a transformational

year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better

positioned than ever.” North Amerrc-c?r\_s_eals ’_7: AR

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, International Seals

P B e T .
L L ERT .

North Am

erican Aftermarket -1 - o




CASE STUDY
Product range
extension delivering
organic growth

nternational Seals <~ -~

atreem

pioday nbayniyg

- New proprietary products helped to drive
e organic growth of >20% in US MRO. The
business’s Service Equipment Rebuild Kits
(SERK™) provide customers with technical
expertise and a kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership. Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new custorners and driving
market share gains.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectars/seals/

AIUOLIBAGE) a)oi0dios

M Seuls :

SIUBWIIIDIS |DIDUDUNY

UO1IDWIOHU| J3YRO



SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR
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The Life Sciences

Sector businesses
supply a range of
equipment, consumables,
instrumentation and
related services to the
Healthcare industry.

Canada: 43% Europe: 36%
Our market-lzoding Cancdian Qurirish & LUK busingss
businzsses supply climeal distributes leadinz-eags
diagrestios instrarmertation techralogies,
and produacts, and specialty SR
surgical devices togetla with ar sp
ated consuamabiles and C).,J Scandicavian businsases
=5 to public haspitals, wpply devices, equipmert
clinics and pathalagy jnj patiert monitorr3
lalzoratories. technologies used in aperating
theatres as well as mecically
Australasia: 21% sepervisad rutiition.
Aleading supplier C‘f
instrumentation ard
consumchles 10 thP [pathalog
soientific ressarch ard nwc‘hra\

L alzc aupy ;\; f;ur \“m T
U f*\ equiprment anca:
censomables usec in hospital
Operaling rocms.

&9 Diplema PILC Annual Report 2022

Revenue by segment’

36% Testing & Diagriostics

24% Surgical
18% f—m strol~testinal
22% Cher healtbcare

Revenue by geography’

43% Conada
36% Lurope
21%  Austialic

Reported revenue (£m)
(compound growth over Hve years;

+8% p.a.

QO

1loday s1bajong MIIAIIA

39UDUIBAOL 33DJ0d10D)

SIUSLUILRIS |RIDUDULY

uoI}DWIOU| J3YL0




SECTOR REVIEW

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Fya0z2 Fra021 Change in the year

Revenwe — £188.6m £1804m  +5%
Organic revenue (4)% +‘| 4%

growth

Adtedopestng £410m  £432m  (5)%

profit

Adjusted operating 21 79%, 7399% (220) bps

. . . margin
“Qur Life Sciences businesses 9

have done a great job of - Crganic revenue growth was 2% - Strategic acquisition of Accuscience:
deve(oping our product excluding last year’s Cdovidfrelotet:] ‘ increases expozure to hw’?h growth testing,

: . . revenues and was moderated by hospita diagnostics and medical segments;
P'pellne_’ fOCUSIng on . staffing shertages; returned to organic continues the build out of our European
innovative products that will growth in G4 as expected footprint
improve pqtient outcomes - Strong diagnostics and endoscopy - Disciplinecff portfolioc management:

H H H performance disposal of al-envirosciences

and position us In hlgh - Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
growth areas. Our prospects to rising diagnostics spend and significant
are exciting.” elective surgical backiogs

Dan Brown Sector fi ial perf
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences "es or Tnurflg_ F_’e_ _orma.r\_ce_

B

: testing_and diggnostics .~ 0. -0




CASE STUDY
~ Innovative products
.. driving growth

Strategic progress R A T

= R L -

yoday 216530435

A key highlight for the year was Life
Sciences’ success with Fuji CAD EYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technoiogy. Our tear partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributer to our strong
performance in endoscopy in the year.

Read more
diplormaplc.com/obout-us/our-sectors/
[[fesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard , :
to the interests of stakeholders in their e ot bl e s el of
dECiSion-making. dec'sions made by the Boord intne year

Dividend

Dne o the comopar decsions cansidered
oy the Board over the year has bee~
relaticn to eturning valae to snargnclders,
v moking e decisions regarding the 202°
fna dhadend ond 2022 ntenmn aividend
tme Bogrd corsidered oL shareholders
eypectonens, the Comeany s iguidity

ol v, and the ~egurement o Tontain
3 ot oeve, of divider

b

Sto oo Ttne feoncial

o]
requited i ghor e our ctrategy.

Acquisitions
! o' tonties ~emai- _entra
e 3oard i asc
ctest mpaot on D
ke azts. Throwghiout the
ddi ed and aperoves
tes and o
Tre Board e

rore ol TEQ ens

lder engagement
T T ;_‘

simerhes That
possess essent i Dokorma 2heroctenstics,
sartculorly nign-guaity, vakee- sdd
cLstamer Tng diorinLuon and groct
TrAanagent

How stakeholder interests have
influenced decision-making




OUR COLLEAGUES
Why weengage

Ho_yuf w;ngt':rlge' )

Hew the Board engages

RIS B AT S

Outcomes/action taken

Lo T i

OUR BUSINESSES OUR CUSTOMERS
Why we engage -
iz ee - R
How we er{gugew o -
- Peoede s e e s

How the Board engages — -
I T

L ~vewendl

moday 216930138
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

QUR SUPPLY CHAIN OUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

hy we engagé Why we engoae

How we enga

4

How the Board eng&g—gé

e

How the Boafd;ngoges
" e —

T

Outcomes/action taken




CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of our Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colleague wellbeing, engagement
and career progression, including through internal
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.

The new facility alsc benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

MBIAIBAD

poday 21693p13g

'.-’.. -

A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their customers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award - SR

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals

O
Q
=
-
[+]
=
o
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0]
o
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=
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M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

75 Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022




Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

Q

What are your priorities for
the year chead?

LR S

“Our strong
performance and T
strategic progress A
in such challenging A S e
circumstances are L
testament to our
outstanding
colleagues.”

Chris Davies
CFO




FINANCIAL REVIEW

T T S Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchanged
{See table 2) N Tl Sllietst ool IR

i

financing costs

3ioday 216310015

Double-digit organic growth

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and totol dividend

Loy

0O
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o
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Tabte 1: Financiai highlights

fepo-tec results Adjusted results

FY - Fy “s FY Yy %o
2022 2021 range 2022 2001 change

R 10128 F o T
" R .2 S

S3UBWaIDLS DIDUDbUILY

oo 764

Toble 2. Adjusted operating profit
Adjustes onerating margan

T 2022 252 bps
) % % chornge
R 21.5 i A

626 . 7 189
@0 G g
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Free cash flow conversion 90% P T
ST adrE

ST VNG G zEnas

Sl

Acquisitions to accelerate our growth
COTVETE O 10 cioens o LIBS O e
A g

T2 0 TCL YO TN JOTTDTERE TG

T ard Ar

I s Pote TaWin

ROATCE: strong return

e ey v -

~ HEEAEA

Strong balance sheet

i 1:z7 [ M

= Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses

'




= feoremETTO TS St e

Employee pension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind
s y TaEe largely offsetting

Table 3: Compaosition of net debt

Tvpe Currency Armoart SBF equivotent interest rote exposge

£370.6m

£3285m

Organic revenue growth

15%

Reported revenue growth

29%

Adjusted operating margin

18.9%

free cash fiow conversion

Q0%

Net debt/EB[TDA

[________menendl

1oday 216330135
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Our risk management
framework

DIPLOMA PLC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
TEAM

LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS

OUR BUSINESSES

Top down

The Group manoges
horizen scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal controls,
processes and risk
management
frameworks

Bottom up

Our businesses
continually identify
risks and opportunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews



Emerging risk  Description

Technology
evolution

Climate change

PR RS TEA i

- B s [l

T 5

2

Digitalisation R I

- @a,

. . O

: . } LA B et TTTE =

Identifying aond monitoring : ot oL 3ot les A ST T AT o
material risks T e TR o P st r%

0O
Q
-
o
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g
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical

spread, helps mitigate the potential impact
of these principal risks.

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Downturn/i nStCibiIlty Adverse changes in the major markets The businesses idenufy key maorket drivers
. . thaot the businesses operate in can resuit and monitor trends and forecests, as well
iNn Major ma rkets in slowing revenue growth due to reduced as maintaining close relationships with key
or detayed dernand for products ond customers who may give an early warning
Risk category services, or margin pressures due to of slowing dermand.
Macro/externai risk increased competition,
A number of characteristics of the Group's
Board risk appetite businessas maoderate the impact of
Averse economic and business cycles:
- The Group's businesses operate in three
Change in risk different Sectors with ditferent
characteristics and ocross @ number o
@ geocgraphic markets.
This risk remains ot o simibar leve to 1053 ~ The businesses offer speciaised products
vear and is addressed continuous'y in our and services, which are often specific to
risk management process. their opplication, increasing custonsers’

switcning costs,

- A hign proportion oF the Grour’s "even.e
comprises consurmabie products, whicr
are purchased os pact of the custorme's
cperoting budget, rather than through
copital budgets.

- In many coses the products are Lsed in
repair, maintenance and refurbisnment
applicaticns, rather than onging
equipment marufactare,



Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Supply chain

Risk category

Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

©

Supply chain disruption has reduced
since last year but operationa!
Imterruptions at custorners and supglers

continue,

The ability 1o servite 2ur Customens in a
timety, manner is G key part of our value-
added proposition.

For manufactyrer-branded products,

there is tre risk that existing distribution
agreement: and vertica integration of
supolers iz concelied, therefore losing occess
tc key distribution channels,

There s also the rnck of:

- Asuppiier taking away exclusivity.

- Manutocturing -ead imes increasing 2s
a resuit of supply chair shortages. We
have experienced this, particularly with
suppliers bosed in Asia, in the current
year.

- Supcly chain partners not operating 1o
the same etnical standardge as Diploma.

Management continues 1< pursue
diversification strategies and regularty
seeks glternative sourcing.

Long-term, multi-year exclusive contracts
have been signed with suppliers with
change of control clauses, where
applicable, for protection or compensation
in the event of acquisition.

We maintain strong relationships with
suppliers and keep custormrers Lpdoted -0
the avent of chonge to retain key business,

Meeting with key customnes reguiarly
to gain nsight into their product
reguirerents and merket develonments.

We work with our supply chain partners

to heip them meet our standords of
acceptable working conditions, financial
stability, ethics ond technical competence
if they are unable to meet these standards
ther we will source product elsewhere.

Infiationary
environment

Risk category

Macrosexterno risk

Board risk appetite

Cautious

Change in risk

®

i
R

Signficant or unexpected cost increases by
suppliers due To the poss through of higher
commodity prices ar other price inCrecses,
nigrier t-ade toriffs andsor foreign currency
Auctuations, could adverselv impact profits
i businesses are unable o pess on sweh cost
nCreoses 1o customers.

tmproved pricing processes and the
value-added activities undertcken by the
businesses mean we are better able 1o
DAss cost increases 1C CLSIomers,

A Aurmner of characteistics of the Group's
nusinesses mocerate the impact of
economic and business cycies:

- The Group’s businesses operate in thiee
ditterent Secters with different
chacacteristics and acrass a number
of geographic markets.

- The businesses offer speciolised products
and services, which are ofter specfic to
their applicotion, increcsing customaers’
switzhing costs,

& high proportion of the Group's revenie
comonses consurnoble products, which
are puichiased a3 part oF the custorme’s
operaling budget, rothor than througr
coptal budgets,

- Inmany coses the praducts are used in
repair, maintenance cnd refurtment
appliczticns, rather than original
eguipment manuiacture,

1oday 216a1png
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Unsuccessful
acquisition

Risk category
Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Tolerant

Change in risk

©

The acquisition pipeline remains
healthy and Bipioma retains its
disciplined approach to bringing
high-quality, value-enhancing
tusinesses into Diplema.

Diptora hos a streng history of disciplined
acquisitions. The business model of the
Group is based on successful aeguisitions in
large and developed markets and sectors.

The following are the key risks of an

acquisition process:

- The Group may overpay for o target.

- The acquired business may experience
imited growth post acquisition,

- Loss of key customers or suppliers post
integration.

- Potential culturat misfit as smaller
businesses are faced with the new
reguirerments of o listed Company.

The above may be the result of inadequate
due dilgence, poor integration or unrealistic
assumztions used n the investment case.

A clearly defined acquisition strategy
is in place witn o disciplined approach,
including financial return hurdles, to
bringing high-guality, vaiue-enhoncing
businesses into the Group.

An experienced Corporate Development
team is responsible for seeking and
evaluating new acquisition opportunities
with the Corporate Development Director
reporting to the CEO.

Aformal due diligence process is followed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEC and relevant Group senior
management. A formal governance
process is in place up to Board level.

& disciplined post-acquisition integration
process covers operational, financial,
governance, legal and reporting matters.
The Board reviews perforrnance of recent
acquisitions annually.

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Macrofexternal risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@®

This risk remains elevated in certain
geographies, including due to angeing
events such s the confict 'n Ukrgine.

Diploma aperates in establ'shed economies
with stable politica. and .«ega systems.

Seopolitical events that couid disrupt the
Group's cpergtions are mainiy reloted to:
- Interruption of trade agreements.
- Tariffs.
- Change of trade relaticnships anongst
countries N wAiich we operdate
{e.g. Brexit).
- Governmer budget spending.,
- Paiirical e ections.

We continue 1o diversify our supply ose
and invest in product range deveopment
10 ritigate exposure 1o any singie morket
of regiorn.

Whenever passitle, we capita’ise on Group
synergies and ieverage inter company
rrading.




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

D O
CIRNNNG

Mitigation

Health & Safety
Risk category

Operctionai risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

O,

Rexative to FYZ there has been a
significant decrease in Heaith & Safety
risk as o result of the conclusion of the
Covid-19 pandernic and improvements
In processes arising from the pandemic,

Some Diploma businesses are exposed to
Heaolth & Snfery risks, inc uding vio tne
environment in which tneir employees,
cantractors, customers, and suppliers
operate, or through the preducts they sei.

The Covid-19 pondemic piaced a greater
focus on Hea'th & Scfety and preventive
measures to imit the spread of Covid-19.
implermenting and continuolsly evolving
these measures nas improved Health &
Safety across the Group.

Additionaily, management continues to
oromete mental nealtn and wellbeing,
offering supoort to colieagues and access
10 on empioyee assistance programnme.

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Operatona. risk

Board risk appetite

Cautious

Change in risk

©

Tae risk of oyber attacks remained high
i 2022
Tne busnesses moirtoined g high
stanga:d of oybersecurity whilst
narcommodatng remste waorking
oractices e ritonies where oot
(DA TR N DISCE A8 O Iesnanse
Cowvd 19 onderric, :

Group ond operating business monogement
depend critically on timely and reliable
informetion from thelr iT systemns to run
their businesses and serve their customers’
needs.

Arty disruption or demind of service ray
delay or impact decision-making if reliabie
dato is unavaiable.

Poor infermation handiing or interruption
of business may oiso lead to reduced service
1o custemers. Unintended actions of
emplovees coused by o cyber-ottack may
alsc lead to disruption, nciuding fraud.

The decentraiiseg nature of the Grous,
including stand-alone IT systermns for ecen
business, 'mits the potentia. impact to any
indivigual business. There is gooc support
and bock-up Buiit inte local [T systemis.

Al businesses i the Oroup have a roboest
cybersecunty program e and we regularly
enjage with cybersecunty esperts to
comtinuously 'mprove and strengthen our
T systems.

Aformalised ERP acoroval and
implementaticn process ensures
businesses hove the most suitabe
[T systems tc effectively manage
ther husiness,

Business conting'ty plans exist for each
business wth cngo ng testin

o

MBIAIAA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

@®

This risk has increased in the veal, moin'y
due to current market lobour conditions
with the tightening of tabour markets
affecting candidate avaiabihty and
retention, upward pressure on wage
levels in certain geographies and
changng expectations of wor<ing
envIronmments,

The success of the Group is built on strong,
self-standing managerment teams in the
operating businesses, committed to the
sugcess of thelr respective businesses.

As a resuit, the loss of key personnel can
have an impact on performance for

a limited time period.

Not having the right talent or diversity

at all levels of the organisation to deliver
our strategy, resdlting in reduced financial
perfarmance.

Contractual terms such as notice pernods
and non-compete clauses can mitigcte
the risk in the short term.

The Group places very high impetance

on pianning deveiopment, motivation

and reward:

- Emsuring a challenging werking
environment where managers fee! they
nave contret over, and resoonsibilty for,
their businesses.

- Implerment.ng o structured talent revievy
process for the developrnent, retertion
and succession of key personnel.

- Offering boionced and competitive
compensation packages with o
combination of saiary, annual bonas and
iong-term cash of share incent ve pians.

- Giving the freedom, encouragement,
financial resources ard strategic support
for managers to pursue ambrticus
arowtn plans

Product liability

Risk category
Operational rigk

Board risk appetite

Aoverse

Change in risk

S

This rigx rermaine ot a similar leve. 1o
lost year.

There is o risk tat products supplied by a
Grour business may fail in service, wnich

couid lead to o ciaim under product lability.

The Group may be exposed to legal costs
and potential damages if the claim
sucreeds and the supplier fails to meet its
liabiities for whatever reason.

in situations where a Qrous business is
seling own-branded products ond cannot
subrogote the lobility to a supplier, the
besiness wi' be hable for failure of the
product.

The Sroup has Jdobility insurance in p ace
proviging appropriate cover for each
Lisiness

Technically guaified personne and contro
systerns are N place 1o ersure prods
meet guality -eguirernents. The Oroci's
businesses care required tc undertaxe
product risk assessments

and comprenensive suppiler Quailty
ASSLIANCe a55essments.

Tre businesses, in their terms and
conditions of sale witn customers.

will typicaily ri-ror the terrrs ana
conditions of purthase trore te suppliers
to it any taoilit'es




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Foreign currency

Risk category

Fimancia: risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

©

This risk has remained at a sirmilar level
to last vear.

The Groud is exposed 10 1wa Types of
HHanooOr sk Couses Dy Tulrency volatilty.
Transiatonal exposure, on Transiating the
resuits of overseas subsidiaries into UK
sterlng; ond transactiona! exoosure, due 10
operating businesses’ revenues or product
cests being denominated in a currency
other than their local cucrency.

Transiationai foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect 1o the US doliar, the
Canadigr dollar, the Acstralan dollar and
the Euro.

A strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
against ol the currendies in whic~ the Group
does Bosiness, would -educe adjusted
operating profit by approsimately £17.0m
1Q%), due tc currency transtaton, Similarly,
2 strengthening of UK ster’ng by 10%
ogaimst all the non-UK stening capital
empioyec would reduce shareholders” funds
ov L3100 (5%

T-ansactional fore g exchange risk arises
onne ooy with respect to US dollars and
Curos. The majonity of the Group's Canadion
and Austalian businesses’ purchases are
dencminated in WS dolars ond Euros. The
Group's US businesses do not have any
rnateriol foreign currency transactional risk,

The Group operates aoress a number of

diverse geographies Lot docs not hedge

translational exposure of cperating profit
and net assets.

The Group's businesses may hedge up to
80% cf forecast {for o maximurm of 18
months) foraign currency transoctional
exposures using Torward foreign exchange
COMEracts.

Rolling manthly forecasts of currency
exposures ore reviewed or g reguiar basis.

Details of average exchange rates used in
the transiation of oversegs earnings ond of
year erd exchange rates used i1 the
transiaten of overseas polonce sheets, for
e principa! currencies used by the Group,
are shown in note 26 1o the consoidated
financia: stetements.

C

MBIAJIA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

N

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Non-compliance
with laws

Risk category

Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

®

Lows governing businesses continue

1o increase in volume, scope and
comiplexity. As the Group scales,
businesses are increasingly subject to the
regulations of multiple jurisdictions that
may not all aiign with one another.

Cur businesses are facing a large number
of regulotory changes over the coming
years in respect of environmental

commitments and controts.

ot

n
]
'
\
'

The Group's businesses are affected by
various statutes, regulotions and standards
inthe countries and markets in which they
operate. Diploma PLC itself is a listed entity
subject to regulation and governance
requirements.

The beard of each business is accountable
for identifying and monitoring what laws
are retevant to their pusiness, including any
ernerging or changing legislation, and for
ensuring commercial legal risks are
appropriately managed.

The Head of Legal advises on legislative
and regulatory changes relevant to the
Group as a listed company and has
oversight of all material transactions
including acquisitions.




VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
Itis the Boud's view that for the fir sncial year ended 30 Septerrte
has Boen cerspliast witk all 57 the prir

, .

ribation rate

oot ensure complio

st or o page 1210 T cuarent Rame ;
al maximrs e

ol abiie tes the e

Principles of the UK Corporate More information
Governance Code 2018

Beard leadership and company purpose Reacd rrore on poges 72 15
[Ziplor iz lod by an et ective nnd

cornritted Board, de sted to promioting

the lomagter sl coss of the

RQISRISTS AW ating value for shareholdors

ard starvehiclders, and coptribeting 1o

sAder socioty.

Division of responsibilities g vore Gn poges
The roles of tre Chrair arcd the Giows CEC

are separate and there i@ an appropriate

balar wecttive and Indopender

NI octtive Directors.

Composition, succession and evaluation  Foadimore onpase
Appoirtments are sebiedt ta ¢ formal, 108 1o 113,
igarous and Transparent procedure.
i g ans an in pace for the Board
or managerrent. Ar evaluatine of
the Board ard its committecs is undartaken
snnually, inlire with the Cods

Audit, risk and internal control

Fonmal tranzparert policies ar 1 proce Jurs
2 ir placs to onsere the irdepondance and

=Hectiver >f the inter—al an

1t et

firancian arsd raratie

reonage ard critigato ises,

Remuneration Foad meore o
Lpzionr e bas remurars :]
1o attroct tho 1 talert aed prome ng

TEIIT RS TaING cricrmance aigned wvadth

and |
sry ot long tormn Trratedy.

O Digloma LT A




Dear Shareholder,

On penalf of the Boorg, T anr delighted

te present the Company's Corporcte
Governance Report for the year ended

33 Seprerrber 2027 which s my first report
as your Chair. One of the responsipilities of
mry rote os CRair is to promots and cversee
the highest standards of corporate
governance within the Boord ond across
the Group. The Board ploys o criticol role
in ensuring that every part of owr Group
conducts its business in g manner whick

is consistent with ethical standards
appropriate 16 a responsible corporote
ctzen. A sound corporate governonce
framework with the right systerns and
controls is key 16 ensur'ng suctainable
JONg-term SUCCEsS! we are alse very
conscious tnat effective goverrance is not
parely a matter of requlatory cormnpliance
but encompasses many psaes inzluding
operating with integrity and honesty,
promoting Siversity gnd enaping petter
decision-making Tirougn ing.Lsion T3
ensure we balonce the needs of ol
stakeholders and operate i~ = farr cnd
transparent manner

This year will oe the 30th anmiversary of

the punlication of *he Cadbur, Corrrttes’s
@00ttt on corporate guvernance, the
founding docurnent for today s Uk
Corporgte Governance Code tme Codel
The repoit highlightea the importance of an
effective board in ¢reating and maintaning
good corporate governance ard set out the
fundamentals of good governonze which
rermain in the current Code. Ac the
envirenment in which corporate Thzens
operate has evoived ond our Group na:
cantinued 16 grow in scale and £ omblesity,
we have continued to develop ana rmorove
what constitutes good gosernonce ath o
particular focus on stakenc ‘

sustaing o and long-terr value creaticn,

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

The Boa:d s very conscicus of the roie it
plays nersaring that Diplomma ope-atesin a
magniner which s consistent with the highest
standards of corporate governance. The
pandemmic has cocelerated the evolutionin
the ooproaches of shareholders and other
stokeholders to these and broader topics.
Fimngncial performance is no longer the sole
guiding reason for a corporation, instead it
must consider its place and role in society,
its resilience and its ability to create value
over time for o wide ronge of differert
staxeholders. Throughout the last few yvears,
we have developed our approach and
thinking arcund sharenolders and
stakeholders, how we capture their v ews
and deliver their \nterests, A core elernent
of tris is the work that the Board has done
over the yeor 10 ensure that Diplora
contributes to wider society througn
sustainabee, long-term practices as well as
through our Delivering Value Responsibly
(DVR) targets. Further information on ou”
sustainanility orogrammes can be found on
pages 42 to 53. We have alsc continued 1o
avolve and embed our DVR programme
througnout the Group. insights from our
DR programme hove been used to inforr
sieps taken oy the Boaord. executive
monagemet and cur businecses 1o
‘mrarove the efficiency of systermns and
orecesses, with the goo! of further
emoowering our colleagues, increasing
ayility ang speed in execution and
anhancing oca’ accountobilty

Effective iegdership ond optimal colieague
engogement depends ar a healthy,
ermpowerzd and postive business culture.
Oiploma has a strong purpose, set of values
and conesve cultural fundamertals which
Javern our autiens ond provide gu'dance
across ow walied businesses even in recert
cralienging times. The imootance of
Tuiture hog peen particularly acute this year
o ow coleagues continued to adapt to
Furtner detaiis on how
ssed

new ways oF waorkin
e Boad faas monitored and as
Cwture can be found on poge 99

tinue 1o refine ana develon cur
aave! £ BrOCeTset, 1 ENSUIE MODUSTNEss
ama etficiency ot Boord level ond throughout
v et enables the
zinanie iwng-ter value for
~d stoxehalders.

Ve v i

tre aroup, i

Board succession and evaluation

Soard sUCCESSION termains G key Ored

of activity and focus. Following the
retirerment of John Nicholes at our Annual
General Meeting (AGM] on 19 January 2022,
lassumed the role of Crair of your Soard.
Barbars Gibbes stepoed down as CFO on
30 September 2022, ond Chris Davies was
appointed to the role on 1 November 2022
Arne Thorbur and Andy Sm'th are due o
retire prict to the 2024 AGM gndinerefue
the Board has commenced the process of
seeking «u'table candidates to toke over
their Committee Chair positions. The Board
1c keenly aware of the neec for diversity ana
inclusion, which is a key component of the
Group's VR programme. The Boord wit
continue to set the right conditions and
iead by exampie through its own approach
to inc'usion and diversity acrass its
compositon; further information can be
found ir our Nominatiors Committes Repot
o~ pages 108 to 113,

d

A key aspect of good governance is for the
3oard to criticolly self-analyse itself, its
~embers and Comatees, in order to
cortinually improve its effectiveness. The
Board caries out effectiveness reviews
annualiv, and in FY22 this was undertaken
irterna ly in line with the Code. This
evalugtion has alss enabied the Soo-d 12
‘dentify opportunities for it to further
imorove its etfectiveness, additional deta
on the evaluation resuits and areas of
ogreed focus can be found on page 112

The Board's priorities for 2023 rema’n
consistant, with a continued focus or the
mpiementation of the Group’ strotegy:
chalenging and empowering ~ronage ent;
succession plunning and manageraes of
fisic, Your Board is well ploced 1o execute it
stewardship role to ensure that tme Groun
continues 1o evolve, scale and deiver
long-term sustainable grewth. We wili ass
continue o be agle, adapting our trunking
and prionties and promoting the nter
cf our investors, ermnplovees and other
stakeshoigers over the comring ,eore,

Our AGM will be neld o1 18 Januory .

nepe that as shiorehoizers in the Comipay,
yoL wi be abieto attend 1o meet with the
Board of Directors anc discuss any miztters
you feelare important to tne future suctesns
of the Group.

David Lowden
Chair

wioday sibaipas
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GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity Gender diversity Length of tenure

100% Non-et i ity 57% WNals 57% (0-3years
43% ‘“ermale 14% 36 years
29% 6-9 years

Skills and experience

B2B, iredustrial & Ditrit otier Seetor o000OGO
Retail and FMCG S 1o Y X X ]

Financial and Risk Manage mnt Y XX X )
Operations . . . . .
Custormer Service 00000

Health & Safety 900

Strategy . . . . _. .

M& AFinancing . . . . . .
International Business . . . . . . .

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022}

Member Board Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

David Lowden 8/8 ) - 4/4 6/6
John Nicholas 3/3 . - 1/1 ) 11

Johnny Thomson  10/10 B ' - -

Barbara Gibbes /9
Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10
Geraldine Huse 10/10
Dean Finch' /10

1 Dean Finuh was unable to ztr=

Changes to the Board
- John Nicholas stepped down from tha David Love sappointed.as Chairof - Barbaro Gibbes stepped down from the
Board on 19 January 2022, : s yreinator Committee Board on 30 Septermber 2022,

Board activity and focus area

- ' 75

Strotegy and strategic esecution E = Operatians
Collzogues and Culture Governance

Diplema PLC Annual Reccry 2022




Qur governance framework

The Board comprises the Chair, Executive Directors and independent Non-Executive Directors, and s responsitie for the performance and
ong-term success of the Cormpany, including heaith and safety, ieadership, strategy, voiues, stendards, controls and risk managernent.

David Lowden

Anne Thorburn
o Indopencoent

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees ond monitors the Cormpany’s
financial statements, accounting
processes, audit {internal and external),
internal controls systerms and financial risk
rmanagement procedures. Also monitors
the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and reviews the external auditor
independence and performance.

See more on pages 102 to 107.

Treasury Committee

Provides oversight of treasury activities in
implementing the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Group Company Secretary

PAtoR-

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Regularly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Cornmittees. Identifies and nominates
suitable candidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senior leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the development of a diverse
succession pipeline.

See more on pages 108 to 113,

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
adrrinistration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined lirnits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved to the Beard.

SN

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews and recommends the frarmework
and policy on Executive Director ond
senior management rermuneration.
Reviews workforce rermuneration policies
and alignment with culture.
See more on pages 114 to 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disclosure of market
sensitive information.

c

hief Executive Officer and Chief Financiai Officer

TR

Executive Directors

=noTTe T

e
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Corporate Governance

Financial Statements

Qther Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined Joined Joined
Octaber 202° February 2019 Septerriber 2015

Current external appointments: Current external appointments: Current external appointments:

- Senior Independent Director, - None - Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Morgan Sindall ple Audit Committee, 7T Electrcnice o

— Chair, Capita PLC Relevant skills and experience:

B28 i~ dustriol, Detribution and Service Relevant skills and experience:

Relevant skills and experience: Sccters 32B Industria. ard Manufacturng Sectore
- industrial and Distribution Sectars - Finangiz and Risk Managemert - fingrcial ond R'sk Managerent

- Financial and Risk Managernent - Ocerotions and Custorner Service - Strotegy

- Operations - Strate - M&A ana Finanting

- Strategy - MEAg~d Fhancing - Interroticnnl Business
- M&A and Finangiog ternationo: Business
- Irternotional Business

Past appointments:
Past appomtments' - Chief Fimancial Officer, Exova Gro

Past appointments:
Chair, PageGroup plc

- Semior indecendent Director
Berendsen pic

- Group Sinance Director,
Compaoss Group PLC

- Regiona! Manoging Directar Latn
Erenza, Compess Group FLC

- Group Fingnce Director,
Irivisk Polvtnene industries ple
- Non-Eaccout've Director, BTG ple

- Char Huntsworth plc
- Non-Executive Director, Willicm Hill o

and Cab e & Wireless Wor dwide
- Crnief Executive, Tavior Newso- So

Chris Davies
Chief Financial Officer

Past appointments
Chief Fincne o Officer,
Fupress Group PLC

anca Contro'ler ong Treosiure:

Joined -
INo e per 2022 fand [~tenm Group CFDY, Incrmope o ¢
- Cnief Financial Officer for North &mrer ca

Relevcmt skills and experience Diagec piz

Current external appointments
- Nen-Erecut ve Director,
-

Motabii'ty Dparations Group PO




Committee membership
IE Rern,, e c1ion

ha

iy

Noemingticn
. Chearr

Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined
Fetbruary 2015

Current external appointments:
- MNome

Relevant skills and experience:
Heaithcare, Retoi, FMCG ang Wtilities
Sectors

- Ooeraticns, HR and Custormer Service

- Stictegy ond R'sk Monogement

- Sustainabily. Tiversty tquiry &lincision
ard Health & Safety

- Inte'natora Business

Past appointments:
- Manoging Drecter, Severn Trent Servces
- Weter Services Director, Severn Trend pic
- uru_},_) HR Dhrector
e Boots Comrogny PLT
- Customer Reic
Sever il

i and lecnnology Director,

Geraldine Huse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Janary 2020

Current external appointments:
- President, Proctar & Garmbie, Canods

Relevant skills and experience:

- Rera'l and FMCO Sectars

- Customer Service

- Saes and Marketing

- Drersty, Bquty & inciusion
Crgamsational Developrent

ot'onc Business

- ter

Past cppointrnents:
Chie? Erec at've Officer, Centro!
Europa
Chair of the:
Cigir buticm

John Morrisen
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legat

Joined
L 2020

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Nay 20721

Current external appointments:
- Oroun Chief Executive, Persimmon PLT

Relevant skills and experience:
BZB industrial, Services and Retal” Sectors
Froncia and Risk Manogemnent

- Operatens a~d Customer Service

- Hestni& Scfety

- M&A and Financing

- Ltategy

— Internationa Business

Past appointments:
Chict Executive Officer,
Naotional Express Group pic
Oroup Chief Executive, Tube Lines
- Group Finonce Cirector & Group Chief
Operating Otizer, FrstGroup o

A Erprieniced FISE Compar g Secretary
cormmnercal s Ctor, Joh responsible
e Qg Seju‘, cormy

actudlrw
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Tre Board is responsible to sharenolders for ROLES (N THE BOARDROOM
the Group’s financial and operational

pefformonce, nsk management, cuiture, Non-Executive Chair
and is collectively responsible for promoting
the long-term success of the Group.

The Boord is responsible for rmonitoring
progress mode against strotegic oljectives,
approving proposed actions and ensuring
that the appropriate internal contrals are in
place and that they are operating effectively.

There is a formal schedule of matters
reserved for the Board which sets out the
structure under wnich the Boord manages

its responsibilitics, providing guidance on
how it discharges "ts authority and
manages the Board's activities. The Board

is assisted by three principal committees ' T ) ‘ o

1Audit, Nomination and Remuneration), . - Do e . L

each of which is tesponsible for reviewing . _ T t ' e -
and dealing with matiers witnin its own

terms of reference. e et o e er s e s .

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board has a formal schedule of
maotters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management pa s B T R A et e
values, culture and stakeholders s e Lo I P
rmembership of the Board and other T Rl Sl - - T

appeintments : LT ' w T ITTLIY L e L L
financiat and other reporting and : o : - S e ’
caontrols

audit, risk and internal controls

contracts and capital structure

communication Sateg e et st e aen L Tl LT T S

remuneration Lt L sttt e mmeec ttoseln o e e ns ol ooy
delegation of authority ’
corporate governance and other OO B e e O T IR
matters

i
&3}




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, culture and values

Trg BCU"j s responsnie for ensaing that
tae Group achieves s porpose, which s 1o
stenth, delver vorue and reveard T
cnoicers by raking a difference 1o our
leagues, custcrers and commaan ties in
s afe] and en ’WL, the o ementsts
ol -‘T"‘TPJV the Baord ensures
g The opjectives of ou purnose are rmet
£ 50 Taring e account the reks ond
oppoTunties facing the Oroug.

-~ e G' ol

iy

Tre 2018 LK Coroorate Governcrice Code
the Code) emonosises the imperiance of
re role of the 3ocrd regarding culture, with
A recorimendet: cns 1nat the Soard
Our decertialised
re s emnbedaed in

AR o its oeen

JISRERESE QNG MMOTTONS
madel means That cuit

ieve are crtical
owvelrmienit 1at
ety HMoweer,
SLsin eypect, O™ NA0JS
Hprovemen 1 ond account JL"‘ [

g ke vear, the Boore hos mmornitored
Tare T amarr et of s ays, T icinc Loes
ssem 1ot
LTIOTETY eSS :f\
2l re’ule

T s
PR RS

Supportr g arowts YWner
tegies, Cuturg'
oot fc s and

A Mo 20

How the Board monitors culture

The Board
- Strotegy updctes

- CEO's report

- Presentations ty the Group | %R' restor
Sector ond function presentations

- Employee engagerment survey

- Site vists

- Board Committees

Our Board Cormm ttees also play on

important role in monitodmg our culture:

- Remuneration Committes receives
updates from the Group HR Director that
provide ar: overv ew of pay structures
ceross the Goup and theis glignment
with our pu pese, volues and strategy.
"his allows the Com~ittee to ensure tnot
the rewevant policies arc practices are
consistent wn’“: our volues,

- Audit Cor-rmttes hos oversignt of imterna
contrels and continuous access to internai
audit, both of whicn can give an
indication of cuiture, particuiarly homing
in on any negative elemerts that don't
a’ign vt the Group's culture.

Employee engagement

The Board 's committed 12 engaging

with emooyees ane nas censidered the

mproyee engogement retnods specied

oy the Code but felt that o

=ethods are maoe agpropriate. Given

the Grous's ascentralised model and its

geographical spread, the Board has

continued with o mult’-faceted approach

1o engagement w th the gobal workforce

that is ot led by any ane Director or group

of Directors.

ternat ve

tne locol
]

ve consider that ergagernent by
"\ naging Directors (MDs) with th
workforze, together vedh strong channels
! atien frorr MO 1o <heir
respective Sector CEO 2 well as
comusication witn the glepal workforce
ed by the Group’s centra’ functiong,
wrovides an effoect ve platform for
tromnOarent Two- vy A\O‘nge with

?‘ -'_'

e reec on colleague
views anz mattars and uses a core o noton
of metnods to conpry with the Code
requ:’emems
- Reguior apdates 1o the Boord ot every

schedued Boord reeting on necile

motrers, Over the post year, coleagas
wellbeing ond morc e
Keen

- Coreague nt ard culture update
fror tne Groap HR Directer,

- Tme Remignercion Commtiee rev ews
wor<iarce pray practices across Ciplama.

- Tne Board reguiarly andertakes s te ve'ts,

- Exec.tve Bc;o'd rr.emmbers requioly
interact with individaag businesses ord
our figt structure ensures SI7ONgG ChoNre s
of corrmig-ication.

- The Board was presented with
cutccmes of tne Group Coleague
Engogerrent Suivey ond discutses these
tOgCt W MEY \E“'Jfﬂ‘ﬁg'; £ overe
de‘ghted wit the nigh partis potior -ote
and engaogerrent noex score; the fu
resu te of the curvey gre detgues On Lages
3610 37

nove seen areas of

I
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Strategy & strategic execution

25%

Regularly rev oLES
perforrmen : 2 the stiotegy
including actiors taker in respect of
managing the pandemic,

- Piesentotors b, the Corpoiate
Developr ent Director and Sector
ieadership on stroteqic priorities and
execution against those priorities.

- Reviewed and discussed our ESG strategy
and approach, Deliverng volue
Respon:itly
Reviewed and approved the Groop's
MEA and busines: develspiment
activities, reorganisatic=s and various
other projects

- Strategy review sossion,

uat Report 2022

Set out below are some of the key activities mattars considered ord decisions made by the Board in the year.

Finance

it & EA

Operations

-
10%

20%

Racoivea
perforran.
Approves the 2023 budget; monitored
parfarmance against the 2022 budget
through regular presentations from the
CFO

Assessed ond approved the proposed
dividend payments, balancing the views
of various stakeholders.

Investor relations: received regular reports
including share register moverment and
feedback from analysts and investors.
Presentations from Tax and Treasury
Functions.

Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

dntes on the Group’s finoncial - Regular updates from the CEO.

- Monitored and discussed the impact
of Covid-1? on the Group's operations.

- Modern Slavery Staterment.

- Secior presentations.




Colleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewed Group Celieague Frgogement
Survey.

- Received reports on workforce wellbeing
throughout the year.

- USA site visits.

- Talert ond succession undate.

- Whistleblowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the maocroeconomic
environment, world events and ermerging
trends,

Annual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropriate
together with mitigating octivity;
reviewed and approved the inclusion

of new and ermerging risks.

Quarterty risk updates.

Cybersecurity briefing.

Arnnual Insurance Review.

Governance

15%

Exec.tioe
- Revie i

Q

MBIAIBA
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

Anne Thorburn 5/5
{Chair)

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 5/5

The role of the Committee

The Audit Cormmittee is respaonsible for
ensuring that the Group maintains a strong
control environmant. it provides effective
governance over the Group’s financial
reporting, inclading oversight and review
of the systems of internal control and risk
maragement, the parformance of internal
and external audit functions, as well as tha
bebavicur expected of the Group's
ermployees through the whistleblowing
policy and similor codes of conduct. The
Committee continues to focus on
rmonitering and overseeing managemant
on these improvernents to governance,
complionce and financial safequards.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaple.com

102 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Reviewed and cgreed the scope of audit
work 1o be undertaker by the external
auditor and agreed the rerrns of
engagement and fees 1o be paid for the
external audit.
Reviewead the Arnual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFO and
the external auditor o the key
accounting issues and areas of significant
uggerment,
Reviewsad the report on cormnpliance with
the U¥ Corporate Governance Code 2018
and reports on the provision of
information to the auditor.
Reviewed the report from the CFO on the
controls in place to mitigate fraud risk.
Reviewed the Half Year Anrouncement
and received reports from the external
guditor on the key accourting i .- o
areas of significant judgemer:.
Revievved the trading updates.
Reviewed the effectiveness ot
internal control and risk Mmoo
proceclures and where appr cpri i, o
recommendations 1o the
for improvement.
Invited the Group interna!
te atiend meetings to rew
of the internal audit work.
year and 1o agres the scope
internal audit work 1o be <
following vear.
Reviewed the UK Corpers D
Code 2018 and future repzoatir::
section 172 Companies -
Approved the Commit tox: na e
pragramme for 2023
Approved the Going C-ro=rr
Staterments.
Continued 16 mionitor il
cudit referm and cha
Received training ant:
axternal advisars ors -
reporting requiremeai:t -
Oversaw the audit perrar -

DT




Pear Shareholder

The Avdit Commmittee assists the Board in
dischaorging its responsibifities with regard to
mmonitoring the integrity of Group financial
reporting, external ond internal audits ond
controls. This incudes advising on tne
reappointment and independerice of
external cuditors and assessing the gual'ty
of thei services: and reviewing the
effectiveness and appropriateness of the
Company's internal audt activities, internal
contrels and managerrent systems,

[Dring the year ended 30 Septernber 2022,
tne Committee has ensured that it has had
oversignt of all these areas while also
focusing an diverse changes in the external
envirenment, both regulatory and political,
including omy continued residual impact

of ~he Covid-19 oandemic, whch has hod

a range of 'mphcations on the rsk
management activities of the Company.

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

[Tt

The Cormmmittes comtinues to monitor the
uncertainties arising from these changes
and consider the management and
mitigation of these risks. In addition, the
Committee has receved reports an internal
audits for the Group's businesses, fogether
with several deep dive sessions including

in respect of oudits of recently ocquired
businesses, as well as updates on the steps
being token to address internal audit
findings and control issues.

I commentead in last year's report thot the
Committee was mindful of the changing
governance landscape and patenticl weight
of ant'epoted regulation in the near future,
given the number of recent formal reviews
undertoken regarding different aspects of
corporate governance and audit market
referm in particular, we note the UK
government's proposed reforms to the oudit
and co porate governance regime which
were puplished on 31 May 2022 and which
include the creation of a new reguiator for
the audit industry and increased disclosure
requirerents in respect of internal controls,
in anticipation of these reforms and under
the supervision of the Committes,
manragemeant has started planning for
expected changes, including prelimingry
steps In deterrrining the scope and contents
of tne Compary's oudit and assurance policy.

The Committee has also monitored
intictives of other regulatory authorities

1o provide investors with congistent,
comparable and -eliabie information on
ciimate-related and ESG matters. We are
supportive of reguiation that enables
informed investrment decisions and support
efforts to encourage harmonisation across
regulotory regimes,

As Audit Chair, | have regular conversations
with the CFQO, Group Internal Audit Director,
Group Finarcial Centroller, Grouz Company
Secretary & Head of Legal ona also the cudit
nartner ot PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(PwC}, our external acdino-

Pw( has now comaleted its At full annucl
cycle, and we value the “igour and chalienge
of its approach. « o plecsed o meport that
agoin there have been no significant control
deficiencies or account'ng srregu-arities
reported to the Commitiee this year The
Committee plons t¢ commence a retender
process for the cudit during 202672027 tor
the FY28 Annua! Report and Accounts in
arder to make ary necesscry cnanges to
providers of other services in a timely cnd
ardesly fashion cnd to oppoint an auditor
be‘ore the start of that vear as this s in the
bast interests of our shaeholoers 1am
confident that the Audit Commuttee has
carried out its dut’es effectively and 1o a
hign standard during tne vear, providing
independent cversight with the support

of managerne~t and assurance from the
cxternal guditors in accordence with UK
regulations, PwC adheres tc a rotation
policy based o best practice and the Grous
engageTert partner wit serve o perod of
ne longer thon Sve pears, Che
becames the iend oush patne for the yeor
ended 30 September 2018 following the
appontment of Fwl, and therefore tmus wii
be his fing! audit

5 By

licok forvard to meeting snarehsiders at
the Annual Generai Meeting or 18 January
2023 and will be nappy 1o respond 10 ary
guestions relating 1o the acty tes of the
Audit Committes,

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 November 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Cormmittee is chaired by Anne Thorbuin
and comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committee acts
independenty of the Executive Directors
and management. Our mermbers have

a range of skilis and the Committee as a
whaole has experience relevant to the Sectors
in which the Group cperates. Anne has
recent and reievant financial experience,
as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal acts as Secretary to the Comrnittee.
The Executive Directors also attend
Committee meetings and subject matter
experts are invited to present on specific
topics as and when required. The
Committee met with the external auditor
during the yeor, without tne Executive
Drectors being present.

The Audit Committee confirme that the
Company nas compiied with the provisions
of the Cormpetition & Markets Autnonty
Order throughout its financial year erded
30 Septemper 2022 and up to the date of
this report,

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

Tne Committee considered and assessed:

- the full year and hatf year resuts a.d
trading updates for recormendation
tc the Board;

- the approprigteness of accourt’ng
policies and piactices, as we' os oriticgl
accounting estimates and key
judgerments: and

- whether the Anrual Report, taken as
o wocle, is fain, balanced ard
understondone and provides the
infarrmation necessary for sharehclders
1o assess the Group's position and
perfornance, business mode’ ana

strotedy.

The Committee considered the motters set
out below as being significant in tne context
of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 September 2022, These
were discussed ond reviewed with
management and the external auditor; the
Cornmittee then challenged judgements
and sought clarification where necessary.

The Committee considered the judgements
rmade in preparing the financial statements,
including the accounting for acquisitions
and associoted valuation of intangible
assets, the provisions for excess and
slow-moving inventory, the potential for
impairment of goodwill and the
appropnateness of the Going Concern
assumption. The Committee also reviewed
the moverments in the Group's defined
benefit pension schames.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

The Committee reviewed the accounting
for gcguisitions compieted during the year,
in particuicr the acguisitions of R&G Fluid
Power Group and Accuscience. The
acquisitions were materiat for the FY22 audit
and, in accordance with IFRS 3 (Business
Caombinations), management has
perfcrmied a full fair volue exercise for these
two acquistions in this vesr's finandial
staternents. As part of their audit o the
Grauo, the externatl auditor has performed
work or:

a) the Purchase Price Allocotior (PPAY;

o} the opening balance sheet as ot the
acquisition date; and

¢} audit of any material fair va.ue
adjustrnents arising on the acquisition
balance sheet,

The Committee reviewed ond challenged
management’s gssessment, which also
included consideration of the external audit
findings. The Committee concluded tnot
the cccounting for these Two acquisitions
and tme other fve smaller acguaisitions is
appropricte.

The Group compieted two disposals o

the year for combined proceeds of 121
resufting in a net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on dizposal nas been presented
within acgusition and other reloted iterms,

Provisions for excess and sfow-

moving inventory

The Committee reviewed the report of

the CFO that set out the gross balances,
together with any related provision against
the carrying vaiue of inventory. The
Committee reviewed the bases used 10
value inventory held across the Groun: they
dlsc considered tne appropr.ateness of
provisions held oganst the carrying vaue
cf inventory, having regard to the age and
valumes of inventory relative 16 expectea
usage anc considenng tne octions taken in
response to supply chain distuptiors during
the year ard any cantinued irmmpact of the
Covid-19 pardemc.

Following s review, which alse ncl uded
consideration of the external audit findings,
the Cornmittee conciuded that tre
provision for excess and slow maoving
invertory 1s agproprate,

Impairment of goodwill
The Committes consdered the carrying
value of goodwill ang the assumot
underlying the mzairment e
judgements inelat'on to gocdwi'
impairment iargely relate tc tne
assumptions underlying the calcuistions of
the value in use o the cosh-generating units
(CGUs) being tested for impairment, These
judgerments are primarity the caicuiaton of
the d'scount rates, which hove increased
due to rising sk free rates and the cost o
debt, the acnievonlity of monogenent’s
forecasts in the short 1o medior term
against the bocksrop of o chcllenging
MACroeconamIc £nvironment, resd
impact o the Cevid-19 pandemric and the
selection of the .cng terrr g-owth rote.
Foliowing tne revew, which 330 incuded
consideratian of The exte ral audit firdinge,
the Committee concuded that tre oz

value of the groaw | recaorded i« apoop- ate

Wi




Other oudit matters

The Committee aisc considered ctner less
raterial matters including the vauation of
the Group's defined benefit scnere and the
impact of the key actuarial assumpmons on
the balances. The Committee s satisfied
with the year end position and the
FssuTmptions used,

Im oddition to the above, the Committes
Qisc seeks comments from the cuditor on
whether the Group's businesses follow
appropriate policies Tc recognise material
strearns of revenLe, and their audit work
cerried out more generaly has assessad
whether there is any evidence of
rmanagement overnde of key i~ternat
controls designed to guard agairst froud
or raterial misstaterment.

As part of 11s monitorng of the integrity

of the finoncid stoterments, the Corrmtiee
reviews whether suitabie account'ng
policies have been adepted and whether
managarnent has made appropriate
estimates and judgerments, and seexs
suppatt from the external auditor to
ossess them.

Going Concern and Viability

The Gaing Concern and Viablity assessment
was prepared by management. 1N preparing
the assessment, management carried cut
reverse stress testing as wel os scenaric
analvsis. Two scencrios were cons dered

- the base case and the downside case. The
base cose reflects actua!l recent trading and
takes account of any further residuas impact
of Covid-"9. The downside case reflects o
rnare significant decline in trading, adverse
movernents iv working capital and lower
than forecest operating margn, and is
constdered by monagement 1o be a severe
but plausible scenario.

The Grous has ample figuidity and covenant
hegdraom in each scenaric for both Going
Concern and Viabiity Staterment purooses
Trhe Audit Comm'ttee reviewsd the
assumptions underpinning each scenanc
and s sat'sfied with managerent's
assesswmient and conclusions inrespect of
Going Concern and Viabiity, Furthes detal
an the gssessment of Vianility and the
Viebilty Stotement are set out on page &9
Furtner detaie on Golng Toncern can be
Tound an page 170,

Engagement of the external auditor

The externa auditor is engaged 1o express
ar opinion on the financal staternents of
the Group and of the Company. The audit
meludes tre considergrion of tne systerns

of ‘'mternal financia. control and the data
cortained i~ the financiol stotements, to
the extent neceszary for expressing an audit
apinon an the truth and fairness of the
financial staterments,

During the year, the Committee carred out
an assessment of the audit process, ied by
the Chair of tne Cormnmittee and assisted by
tre CFO. The assessment focused on certain
criteria that the Committee considered to
oe importart foctors in demonstrating an
effective oudit orocess. These factors
included the quaolity of the audit process
ano the robustness of chalienge to
Tianagerment, key audit risks anc hiow these
hove beer addressed, the planning and
axecution of the avdit and the role of
monagerment N the audit process.

Tre Committee was satisfied that the
PwC gudt of the Commpany and Group had
orovided a rabust and effective audit and
an approprate ‘independent challenge of
the Group's semior rmanagement. it asc
supnorted the work of the Comimittee
thiough cieor ong objeltive commurication
or developments in fingncial reporting

and governance

The Cormmittee also oversaw the audit
partoer rotation process as Chrs Burns, the
Zurrent eod gudit partner, s due to rotate
frer this FY22 year end. A repuacernent has
peen identitien and nas been shadowing the
udit pro Densure a smMooth handover.,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group's
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work that can be carried out by
the external guditor of the Group, in light

of the reguiation set out in the EU Audit
Directive and Audit Regulation 2014 {the
Regulations) and the Financial Reporting
Council {FRC) Revised Ethical Standard 2019

The Regulations substantialty curtail those
non-audit services that can be provided by
the auditor 1o the Group and in particuar
prohibits ali tax refated services, including
compliance services as well as general
odvice and all consultancy and cdvisory
services. The Regulations stipulate that
Board approval is required if eligible
non-audit services, such as due dikigence
and similar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group audit fee and the
Companry may not allow eligible non-audit
services 10 exceed 70% of the Group audit
fee, ca.cuiated on a rolling three-year basis.

The CFG does not have de'egated authority
to engage the external auditor to carry out
any non-audit work, but must seek approval
frorm the Chair of the Audit Committee.

Taxotion services are not provided by the
Group's current audit firm; a range of
different firme are used for the provision

of tax advice and ony assistance with tax
cempliance matters generaily. In addition,
due diligence exercises on acquisitions and
sirnilar transactions are not previded by the
auditor, but are gloced with other firms,

The external auditor is retained to carry aut
assurance services to the Committee in
connection with agreed upon procedures’
on the Group's half year consolidated
fingncial statements (£28 000). The external
auditor also provides occess to its Viewpoint
technical supscription service {(£1,200).

106 Dioorra PLC Annual Report 2022

Witn the exception of these services,

Pw( has not provided any non-audit
services to the Group or its subsidiaries
and has confirmed its independence to
the Audit Committee. Further information
is set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial staterments.

The Committee assures ftself of the
auditor’s independence by receiving regular
reports from the external auditor which
provide details of any assignments and
reloted fees carried out by the guditor in
addition to its normal audit work, and these
ore reviewed against the above guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmed its independence for
the current finoncial year.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties that
are currentyy judged to hove the mest
significant impact on the Group's iong-term
performance are set out in a separste
section of the Strategic Report on Internal
Control and Risk Management on ooges

50 -c 88.

The Committee is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's system of
internat contral The systemn of imtenal
co~trol is designed to manage ratner than
eliminate the r'sk of foilure tc achiave
business objectives and can only wrovide
regsonable and not absslute assurance
sgainst material misstatement ot loss.

The Groug has the necessary procedures

in ploce to ensure thot there s an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and
monoging the principot risks to the Group.
These procedures are in line with the FRC's
guidance. The Board has esiabished o ciear
orgonisations! stucture with defined
authonty leveis.

The goy-1e-doy running of The Group’s
business is delegoted to the Executive
D rectors of the Group who are sippo-ted
2y the neoos of each business Sector ard

fonctional nead: cf the Group.

Key financial and operational measures
relating to revenue, cash and receivables
are reported on a weekiy basis. Detailed
management accounts and key
performance indicators are prepared
rmonthly using a robust proprietary reporting
system to collect and analyse financial data
in a consistent format. Monthly results are
measured against both budget and hatt
year reforecasts which have been approved
and reviewed by the Board. Al capital
expenditure above predefined amounts
rmust be supported by a paper prepared oy
management.

All financial data is taken directly from each
business’ trigl bolance held in the'r local ERP
system and reanalysed and formatied in o
separate Group management reporting
systern, operated by the Group Finance
department. There is no rekeying of financai
dota by the Group businesses to report
monthly financial resuits. The Group Finance
department continues tc develop the
functionality of this management reporting
system to provide gregter insights intc the
financial and operational actvit'es of the
Group’s businesses.

The Group's internal auditor regularly audits
the bose data at each business te ensure it
is properly regorted through o the Group
managernent reporting system.

As part of the year end ciose process, each
business is required to complete g self-
assessment that evaluates the financial
control environment in their business,
designed to identify weaknesses in controls
These assessTents are critically reviewed
by the Greup internal Audit Director and
evaluated as port of regular Internal

ALdit reviews.

A surmmary fer each business is prepared
for the Audit Commitiee. in addition, semor
manoagement of each business is recuired
to confirm s adherence with Group
occounting policies, Drocesses and systems
of internai control by mezns ot a
representation ietter.



Tre Committes hos reviewead the
ettectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems
for the period from 1 October 202110 the
date cf this report. Taking into account the
rattens set out on pages 82 1o 88 reloting
to pringipal risks and uncertainties and the
reports from the Group Internal Audit
Director, the Board, with the advice of the
Committee, is satisfied thot the Group has
in ace efective risk management and
nternal control systemns,

Internal audit

Trie Group maintains on internal audit
deportment wnich reports directty to both
e CFC and Chair of the Audit Committee.
Tre department comprises a Group imternal
Audit Drrector and a Group Internal Auditor
nusea ot the Group's offices in Londan.

i~ January 2022, the Group Internal Aadit
Director nresented his audit pian for the
veor 1o the Committee for its approval.
increasingly during the year, interncl audit
undertook audits in person as travel
restrict'ons were lified in a number of key
jurisdictions. The department continued to
effectivery rely on remote visits with the use
f appropriate commurication technology
whe e site visits wele not possibie

Tha seope of work carried out by interna
cudit gereraliy focuses on the internal
financia, operationat and compliance
controns operating within each business,
ncieding rsk managernent octivities and
misiness process improvernents, Formal
written "eports are prepared on the results
af eqch internal oudit visit taat set out
i~rernal contro. weaknesses/risks identibed
during the't work, together with
ormmendations to improve the interna
trol environment end mitigate these
weaaer 23sesisks. These reports are timely
and reguiariy discussed with senior
~management within the Sroup. The reports
e also snered with the externat guditors.

At the end of the francial yeor, the Grous
irterngl Audic Director for~aly -eports to
the Committee on the results of the interna
audit work cartried out by his department
duning the vear The Commitresa reviews
Mmanagement'’s responses to matters raised,
including the time taken to resolve such
rmatters. Updated reports on progress
ogainst the clan are provided ot reguior
irtervals and the Audit Chair also meets
separately with tne Group Internal Audit
Director ot legst twice @ year to review some
of the department’s reports and discuss
their findings.

There were no significont or high-risk
matters identified in the internal audits
undertaken during the current financial
yeor. Several recommendations were again
raade this year to the businesses in regard
to ‘mplementing adequate and effective
internal controls and procedures aimed

At improving existing processes around
cybersecurity, inventory management

and procurement.

The Committee conducted the annual
review of the effectiveness of the internal
audit department, including its oudit plan,
generct performance ond relotionship with
the external quditors. Based on its review.
the Committee was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function, specifically that the nterncl audit
department is sufficienty independent of
executive mcnagernent and has sufficient
resources and scope that is anprepriate for
the size and nature of the Group.

Whistleblowing

The Committes alsc monitors the adequacy
of the Group’s whistiebiowing pchicy, which
orovides the frarnework 10 en~courage and
give emzlcyees confidence to blow the
whistie’ ond report irregulanties. The paticy,
together with hotline nosters, are placed on
site noticeloords across the Group.
Imployees are encouraged T raise concerns
via the confidentiol multiinguat hotline,
which is managed by an independent
externa company anz s availoble 24/7,

365 coys a year.

All reparts are provided ta te Group
Compamy Secietary & Head of Legal for
review, ¢ ensure that they are appropriately
investigated - with the support of internal
cudit and external resource, 1f required.
Most miatters reported through the
whistleblowing service relate to personnel/
HE matters and, whie these gre not areas
for review by The Comrmuttee, such matters
are duily investigates 'in the same manner
as any ather issue raised.

o]

M3IIAIIA

modey 216230135

soubuIaAcn aypiodion

0
ot
-2
[+
-
3
=%
o
-
3
Q
fa
[=3
3




NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

David Lowden
{Chair)

Anne Thorburn 5/5

5/5

5/5

Andy Smith

Geraldine Huse

Dean Finch 4/5

Jobn Nicholu-é- 1/1

The role of the Committee

The Normiration Committes reviews the
composition of the 3oord and principal
Cammittees, considering skills, knowledge,
experience anc diversity reguirerments before
makirg appropriate recornmendations to
the Board regurding arny changes. I also
rnanages succession plonning for Directors
and the Group Company Secretary and
oversees succession planning for senior
leadership across the Group.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaple.com

108 Diploma PLC Annuel Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Recruitrment of a Chief Financial Officer
and broader succession planning far
Chairs of Acdit and Rernuneration
Committes
Consideration of a detailed skills,
experience and diversity matrix that
wought to identity recruitment priorities
based on identified gops, industry
expectations and cood practice.
Facilitating a mare diverse list of potential
candidates ahead of the cearch for two
Non-Executive Directors by setting clear
objectives for the external search
consultants and ensuring o clear
articulaticn of the company’s ongoing
cornmitment to impraving diversity in role
specifications.
Consideration of the contributions ar
effectiveness of the Non Exec #igs
Directors seeking re [IeE I
Annual Generol M
recommer it
shiareholde




Dear Shareholder,

Yarm pleased to set outT below the report on
the activities o the Nominagtion Committee
during the year.

The Board is of the view thot 1t is essent'al

1o have an appropriote mux of exper ence,
expertise, diversity ond :ndependencs, Such
diverse attributes enabile the Boord as a
whole 1o provide informed opinions and
advice on strotegy and relevant topics,
therety discharging 1ts cuty of oversight
Appointments to the Board are rmade
foliowing consideration of the experience
and expertise of existing Directors, ary
required skill sets or competencies, and the
strategic reguirermnents of the Group. During
2022, the compaosition of the Board changed
sighty, reflecting: (i) Jobin Nichoias
stepoing down from the Board, and (i
departure of Barbara Gibbes.

Afundamental responsibility of the
Committee is to ersure plans are ir piace
for orderly succession to the Board, as we!
as our Group Corpany Secretary and sen or
managerment gositions, and the Committee
debates these regularly. The mair focus of
the Cormrrattee during this past vear has
been on Board succession planning,
ncluding the appointrment of our new O
Financial Officer and the search ¥or the
Chairs of tme Audit and Remuneiation
Committees 16 ensure these pos'ticns ae
apponted in time for an orderly handover.
The Committee continually mon'tors the
batance on the Board to ensure we have the
right combinction of skills, experence and
knowiedge consistent wih the long-werr
strategy of the Compary, This al.owes us 1o
identify where further focus is needed - the
coming years and beyond.

We are mindful of the giscussions around
improving diversity and inclusior, together
with the targets set by the Hapton-
Alexander Review and the Parier Review.
Feliowing the departure o Barbara Cibbes
at the end of the fingncio! year, twe out of
seven Dhrectors (26.57%) are wormen *
the Board's cim 1o meet toe 1Grgets set oy
the Harmpton-Alexander and Parker sevievs,
dealing with gender and ethnic dverst
respectively, which is Teasible gren curens
SLCCEssion mons.

The Board will maintain oversight of the
range of activities the Group is pursuing
aimed at increasing the diversity of our
workforce - including the executive pipeline
that is essential for Executive Director
succession planning. We have written
elsewhere (see page 40} about our Group-
wide approach to diversity and inclusian,
w~hich ernanates from the Board and
impacts the approach of the Nomingtion
Committee.

The FRC's guidance on board effectiveness
recognises o breadtn of diversity that goes
beyond iust gender and race, ond includes
personal attributes including intellect,
critical assessment, judgement, courage,
honesty and tact; and the abifity to listen
and fo-ge reiationships and deveiop Trust,
This ensures thot g board is not comprised
of like- minded individuals. The Committes
agrees that diversity is vitai when reviewing
tne composition of the Boord and setting
the criterio for the recruitment of new
oppointees, alongside succession planning
activities. External search consultants are
expected to make every effort to put
forword diverse candidates for new Board

positions. Whilst appeintrnents will continue

to be made an merit and against objective
critenaq, it rermains the Committee’s
intention that the diversity on the Board
wil continue 1o increase over time,

The Committee has aiso maintained its
focus on the executive succession pipeline
and senior managerment succession oians

within the Group, -eflecting its respensibility

1o ensire appropriate plans are in place.

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nomination
Committee

21 Novermber 2022

“Ensuring the right mix
of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is chaired by

David Lowden, Board Chair. The Commitiee

comgprises the Non-Executive Directors and
meets as necessary to discharge its
responsibilities.

The Group Comparny Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the cormpasition

of the Board and principal Committees,
considering skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity requirements before making
appropriate recommendations t¢ the Board
regarding any changes. It olso manages
succession planning for Directors and the
Group Company Secretary, ond oversees
succession planning for senior leadership
across the Group.

The Committee's role and responsipilities are
set out in its Terms of Reference, which were

reviewed during the year and opproved py
the Board.

Process for Board appointments

[

B T CUIE T S TR PN B

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Company
Segretary, is responsibie for ensuring that
there is o property constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upon appeintment, all new Directors
are provided with a comprehensive
induction, where they meet witn key
members of monagement and familiarise
themselves with all core aspects of the
Grouon, its businesses and the markets in
which it operates.

Directors are encouraged, wherever
possivle, to visit the Group's sites sethat
they can get a better understanding of
the business and interact with employees.
White travel was restricted and cormplex
dunng the Covid-19 pundermic, site visits

by individuali Directors (and the Boa'd as
awhele) have resumed and allowed
Directors to see Dploma’s safety ard
sustainability processes, te tak with local
anagernent ond workforces and 1o assess
now effective y Diploma’s culture is
corrmunicated ana embedded ot ail leveis.

The Chair aiso has the responsibility of
ensuring that Directors receive training on
a continual basis in support of their ongoing
developrment. This training is provided by
way of technical updates, reparts and
briefings prepared for Beard reetings.
Directors hove full access to our corporate
adviscrs as well as a regular and
cormprehensive supply of financial,
operational, strategic and reguiatory
information to heip them discharge their
responsibilities.

During the vear, the Board held a strategy
review session to confir the Company’s
strategic goals as we'll as receiving detailed
updates on operaticns and support
functions.

The Committee
reviews and
approves an

outline brief and
role specification
and appoints a
search agent to
facilitate the search

ils

Step 2

A Committee
member
discusses the
specification with
the independent
search agent, who
prepares an initicl
longlist of
candidates

0 Diploma PLC Annun! Report 2022

Step 3

The Committee
then defines a
shartlist of
candidates and
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Comrmittee
makes a
recomrmendation
to the Board forits
consideration

Step S

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirerments of the
FCA's Listing Rules
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Calendar of activities

November 2021 January 2022 March 2022 April 2022

Meeting all Board Handover with Visit to Windy Chair Q&A

colleagues, both outgeing Chair City Wire in published in the

individually and Chicago, and Purple Portal, the

collectively Hercules Group's newsletter
Aftermarket in

Meeting Group Louisville in the USA

heads of functions
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Visit to Shoal Group,
IS Group and
Clarendon in

the UK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group hes
always made induction processes compiex.
The pandemic led us 1o reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Custormarily there would have
been face-to-face meetings with key
executives and management, introductions
to their direct reports, one-to-ones following
the initial meetings, and site visits arranged
1o key businesses. Now parts of the
induction plen are conducted via video calls;
particuiarly where key people are located
outside of Europe. This permits Directors to
have considerably greater exposure tc the
vanous businesses and personnel and we
are pleased that we can once again
encourage Directors 1a visit our businesses
and oppreciate our culture and coileagues in
person as wel as continuing 1o develop therr
understanding of each business.

Length of tenure

Succession planning

The Cornrmittee formally reviews succession
planning for the Board, Group Company
Secretary and Head of Legal, and senior
management at least once each year,
taking into account the chalienges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
background, skills and expertise that will be
required by the Group in the future During
2022, fallowing the oppointment of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertock a
mote thorough analysis of the Board's
competencies. The Committee also
considered how the Board wouid be required
to evolve to be fit tor the future, as well as
any potential gops that may need 1o be
Hiled through succession or trainng.

The CED manages the developmaent of
succession plans for executive
management, ond these are overseen by
the Cormmittee. The CEOD and Group HE
Director presented a succession oanning
update to the Board in January 2022

The Committes s oware of the importance
of iderttifying criticai roles within the
businessas 1o ensure we retain and maotivate
key talent and have the necessary skills for
the future. Overall, it was clear that we have
a good executive and managament
succession planning process and,
importantly, succession is being actively
managed by the Executive team to achieve
the desired long-term cutcomes.

The standard term for Non-Executive
Directors is three vears. They normally serve
for a maximum of nine years, which is split
across three terrms of three years each. All
Directers are sagject to annual re-election.
With only specific exceptions that may be
necessary to ensure Boord cortinuity,
Nan-Executve Directors shall not stand for
re-eection after they have served for the
period o their independence, as determined
by appiicab e UK stondards, of nine years

2015 2016 2017 20

2019 202¢ 2021 2022 2073

2024

2025 2028 2027 2028 2029 20Z0

Davio Lowden

E‘é—y Srith’

Anne Thorburn'

Deradine Hose

Dean Finch

- Length of Term

Dhrerro o thod and R term




Board evaluation

The Board conducts an annuas evaiuoton of its perfermance and thot of its committees and, in accordance with gocod practice, engoges
an independet thirg: porty fodiitotor To assist in this process every three years. For the year ended 30 September 2022, the evoluation of
the Board as o wnome and of 1ts commitiees was undertaken imternally, led by tne Board Chair. Board members completed questionnaires
regarding the operation and effectiveress of the Boara and its committees. Findngs were coliated by the Group Company Secretary and
the Board Charr discussed the conclusions and recormmendations separately with each Director.

The performance of the Non-Executive Directors was reviewed by the Board Chair. The performance of the Executive Directors was
reviewed by the Board Char and the Non-Executive Directors and the results of the 2027 evaluation process were considered by the Board.
The conclusion was that the Beord cortinued to function well, and the onboarding of the Boord had been well received, resulting in
improvenent to Boare processes and werxpians. Directors operated in an otmosphere of open and constructive debate with o good
breadth of skils. experence, and viewnoints. Folowing the evaluation, the below recormmendations were made:

Recommendation Action
Consider the diversity of the Board, fro both a gender and Nomination Committee to address diversity requirernents in
ethnicity standpoint. succession planning and during the Nen-Executive Director

recruitrnent process.

Continue to chailenge and supnott or the progress of DVR actions  Consider ESG skillsets duning the Non-txecutive Director recrutrrent
process, creation of an ESG Committes as wel as enhanced focus on
cimate-reigted financial risks.

improve -nformaticn shared with the Board to enhance visibiity on Board papers 1o includle executive surmmaries tc bring focus to
certain topics a~d improve decision-mmaking discussions, and Sector presentations ta the Board to include key
indicators of custornier ond supplier performance.

Tre Company expects 1o update sharehoicers on the progress made in reiation to the matters identified above in its 2023 Annual Report.

Key areas for development

Tre below recommendations were made T low'ng the 2027 external Board perfsrmance evaluation.

Recommendation Action

Consider increasing the size of the Board and bringing i further MNomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Soard

skiils relevant to Dip oma s g'ze and operations. and incorporated this into succession plonning.

Boord training progromrme 1o be evo ved. Additional sessions included as port of annuar colendar as well 23
bespoke sessons from adwvisors as required.

Ernplovee enguaemert 1o be reviewed. increased numiber of site visits, with Non-Executive Sirectors
conducting these individually on occasien and providing feedback
to the Board.

Board schedule to be reviewven. Board dinne: in the evening prior 1o meetings inciuded to cover

specific areas of focus or concern and permit further inforrma
engagement with key managemnent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member
Andy Smith (Chair)

Meetings attended

&/6

Anne Thorburn

6/6

David Lowden

6/6

Geraldine Huse

&/6

Dean Fiﬁch

6/6

Joﬁ;ﬁcholus
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The role of the Committee

The Corrwnit toe, on behalf of the Board,
agrees all aspocts of the remunzration
of the Executive Directors. It agrees the

strategy, direction, and policy framewaork

for the rermumeration oF the semnior
axeculive

whao have sigrificont influence

ovel the Group's ability to meet its strategic

objectives. The Cammittze also oversees
all workforce remurerotion policies.

Terms of reference can be found on

our website at www.diplomaple.com

14 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

Approved Remuneration Committee work

programme for 2022,
Revievsed the AGM 2022 vates on the 2021
Rermuncration Committee Report.
Reviewed and proposed the new
Directors’ Remuneration Policy, and as a
result, proposed amendments 1o the rules
af the Diplama PLC 2020 25F.
Approved the service cortract for the
new CFO.
Appraved annual perforrmance borus
targets and the subsequent bonus awards
for 2022.
Approved new Performance Share Plan
(PSP avwards for Exccutive Directors and
Croup senior managerment.
Confirmed the vesting percentages for
the PSP awards rmade in December 2019,
which crystallised in 2022
Reviewed ExecLtive Directors’ salaries,
pensions, and benefits.
Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
MNon-Executive Directors.
Reviewed remuneration framework o
Executive Team and senior manais
in the operating businesses.
Reviewed workforce remnunearationr
framewasrk.
Approved the 2022 Remureratic -
Commitiee Report.




Dear Shareholder

L5 Cnair of the Board Remuneration
Carmmmittee {Committee), | am pieased o
present our Directors’ Rermuneration Report
{CRR} for the yeor ended 30 Seprermber
2022 and our revised Remuneration Policy
for which sharehotder approval will be
sought ot the January 2023 AGM,

Context and opproach to remuneration
Our pecple lie ot the heart of our success.
As our business grows and becomes more
Compiex, oUr people, tears and
organisation must grow with it. itis vital
that we have the right calibre of people and
that we incentivise excellent performance
and reward thern when they do. On page
118, Diplomc's approoch: to remuneration

is ifluztrated showing how strategy,
perfornance and reward align. ina
decentralised Group, we work hard to
baiance giignment with lzcal accountability
and agiity. Our reward policies and
practices have supported the growth of the
business well over the years. During this
policy period, our performance hos been
excellent and our talented management
tearm have doubled the size of the business.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was

a very strong year

of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long

term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

e Dram o PUD Lomst Repoet 202

1t i against this backdrop that we have
considered our remuneration policy for the
upcoming three years.

2022 performance and pay

The Diploma team hos delivered another
year of strong financial results, adding to
the Group's ‘ong-term track record of
excellert business performance and
shareholder returns. O-ganic growth has
been driven by revenue initiotives, positive
demand, ard pricing. Aiongside this,
implermentsnion of our strategy cont’ nues
apoce w.irnthe acguisition of new
businesses 1o oring new capobilities and
opportunities ta drive future orgonic growth
Win regaords to scaling, T has been a year
of excelient progress bLiding infrastructure
for scaie, developing the target operating
model, and evelving the structures,
capability and culture of the Sroup.

Excellent deivery against our strategic
pricrities of growth, scaling and Delivering
Vaiue Responsibly have resutted in strong
perfornance (shown in tabie on pages 119}
Adjusted operating profit (+25%), reported
revenue +29%) and free cash (+11%)

ali exceeded annual borus torgets (o7 page
130), resulting in a ful bonus povment of
125% of salary for both Jormmy Thomson
and Barbara Gitbes.

Our iong-termn performance continues to
crecte excellent gharehoider returns Our
three year compound annea growth rot
(CAGR] for adjusted earnings per share
(EPS) 2 19% This exceeds tre performance
target maximom of 14% ana the return

on adjLsted trading coptal employed
(ROATCE) is 17.2% meoning thot the
underpin applying o ow FEF £in fne with
the Group's finanzial mode! cndg meets the
Bocrd's expectation, Our regtive three vear
total shareradar reterr (TSR} performance
is inthe 9lst percentie of TSE 250
companies (exc Lding finoncia! services and
imvestment trusts), rocbing 15 oot of "hE
comparres. Bosed or thess excellert results,
the Performonce Share @ i
{(20°9)) hos wested at an
Trommson a~d Barssro0

other PSP oot cponts,

eyt
[Pope)

Jehnny Thomson's total cormpensation
tor 2022 {showrn in the Single Figure table
on page 129) 15 £3.8m {2021 £5.2m). The
difference versus last vear is maoinly due
te lovwar share price apprecigtion.

In line wita the Code, the Committee
reviewed ndividuat Directors’ Incent've
plan outcomes and overall remuneration
considering the Group's underiying
performance. We have not made any
adjustrments to our remuneration schemes
as a resslt of Covid, no furiough support
was taken, and no discretional adjustments
have been opplied 1o ocutcomes,
Accordingly, the Commmittees 1s satisfied
that the incentive plan outcomes and the
tota: rerruneration received by Executive
Directors in respect of the year ended

30 September 2022 are consistent with the
ievels of company performarce detvered
and thot the Remuneration Policy is
cperating as intended.

Appointment of new CFO

Chris Davies joined Diplomo as CFO on

1 Nevember 2022 after Barbara Gibbes

ett the Company on 30 September 2022
Haoving plaved an impeortant rcle in helping
1o steer Dinlorma thraugh the pandermic and
cobding strong foundations for the future,
e Comrmittee determined 1o treat Bapara
75 a goos eaver and her remunelation
arrangements cn departure were in
groordance with the Remuneration Policy
and planrues Her exit arrangerments are
set out on page 129

We anpcintad Chris following a thormagh
nracess, wheh considered internal and
ertena candidates. Diplema was Barbara's
st FTSE Boord appointment and her
oockage was set accordingly. Chris’ package
¢ cornrnensuiote with his experience as an
established CFO with an excel ent tracgk
record i~ decentraiised, ervice-ed,
uit-nenondg organisations. it reflects the
‘nroreasing size and complexity o Diplema
angd tre mportont suppott he Wil provide

- tne dervery of strategy, business
oertormance and a robust financial cortroi
rrizwlrk, This oroviaes the tight baionce
within the company and reflects a foir
sackoge The detors of Cra's's packoge are
ard oot o” zage 124, Conastent with our
sohicy, Crrie received buy-oLt owarog inthe
arm of zash, Dipioma shares and Diplama
S grants to compensate h o tor some of
U VONITOIE FErmUNery

red i orges 1o joir ioioms.

s awards tnot he

Tds saren

“avrrerts 1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the rermunergtion foregone inciuding the
nature, vesting dotes and performance
requirements attached to that
remuneration and payments will not exceed
the expected value being forfeited. Exact
amounts will be finatised fallowing the
publication of his previous empioyer’s resuits
and will be disclosed in next year's DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce

The skill and dedication of Diploma’s
colleagues lie ot the heart of our success.
The Group achieved outstanding levels o
colleague engagement cgain this year
(more information on page 36 to 37).
Remuneraticn in Diploma provides a careful
batance that enables local decision-rmaking
in fine with our decentralised business
rnodel, whilst ensuring guidence and
governance from tre Group, and incuding
a review of pay equity, whichis one of the
Group's ESG criorities.

The CEQ pay ratio for 2022 {detail on paae
135} has reduced from 18071 15 1297, The
orncpal resson for the reduction i lower
share price appreciation frem rnarket
movernents. The median pay for UK
colleagues has remained St a similar leve!
29,074 (2021, £29,036), with the addition
of ca. 400 new ermployees from LIK
acquisitions. if we exclude employees who
joined through ocauisitions, the median
pay for the UK workferce has increosed
rrargingily to £2¢,550.

-

aal

Thiz vear's Group reward guidonce to the
businesses focused an looking after
colleagues. The first priofity was focusing on
cokeagues affected oy inflationary pressures
ing frome the macro-environment,

: ding energy orices and other ris'ng
coste of ising. For the first tirre the Group's
governance inciuded o0 ndesendent review
of colleagues 'riower pod cles (=£40k per
annwm), and these colleagues received an
average increase of 75%, nigher than the
averall workforce increase.

For senior leadess, tre rationale for ircreasrg
remuneration < secogniticn of increasing
responsibiiities ina growing business and
ncentivising future crowtn algned to
Dipeorra’s strategy, We rerncin conscious of
E05LTNT we £ON retgin TOp Tolent in hug=ly

cerpettive irtemaLehal markets.

e Diclara PLC Lenuni Fe

The 2022 overall pose sawary inw ease across
the Group is 7% for the workforce (2021,
4%), sncluding senior managers. The
~management team and Cormmttee will
continue to review total compensation
proactively in order 1o ensure our wider
workforce is fairy rewarded. The Commttee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Remunearatian Palicy, Executive
Director compensation and overseeing
senior management compensation
frameworks.

Remuneration policy review

The Committee completed a
comprehensive policy review in 2027, The
review process is set out an poge 120 and
covered a number of key facters.

The Group has increased considerably - 5"z
and complexity i this ooicy penod {shown
inthe diograr on page 120} S'nee the
appointment of our CEO in 2019, 1re Grou;
fas doubled in size from a cormbination of
strong organic growth, strategic excoution
and the geguisition of 25 stretegicaly
IMportant Husnesses, Shareholders have
benefited ond Dipioma has grown tror,
FTSE 185 to FTSE 11t cver the period and the
Group's piors reman amrbitions. Desigaing
our policy T recognise the increased
responsibiites 1o ottroct, retain ard
mgentivise managernent Tor the neat phiose
of growth was a top prionty.

ESG s increasngly important to all our
staxehciders and we wish to introduce
torgets intc our varioble pay. Ersuring that
bonus measures ore figorous, speciic,

stretching ond go beyond the "day job’
anessertial principle of rewara in Digioma

Work is underway 1o develop Deivering
Vidlue Responsibly as part of the steteay
and we have set some non-Jnancial b Pig
and targets (show~ on poge 5§ but more
tme s needed T2 assure these measures
cefore we canintroduce them i~ vaniooic
oay. Accerdingly. our propesed oo oy nos
Hexibility to introduce E5G mretrcs zurng
this policy pensd (41 an appropnate

et

-
Lo,

Within the wider stakeholder contest,

we considered how we reveard our whole
workforce, as covered earlier. The senior
management team engages freguently
with employees, either 0n a business-wide
basis or In the context of smalier foous
groups, to scicit feedback generally on

a wide range of matters, including
remuneration. Feedback s passed to the
Cornmittee via the Executive tearm and is
taken into account by the Committee when
setting Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Policy. Additionolly, we paid attention to
how governance is evolving ang have made
a nurnber of enhancements n our new
oolicy whick are set out on page 121
including in¢reasing rminimum shorehold ng
requirements [M5K] and post cessation
shoreholding requirerments.

Tne last stepin the noacy review wos to

review relevant ma ket data 1o inform

(bt not drivel the Commitiee’s
considerations. (data overview 1s st out on
page 1200 The Cormmittee is awore o, and
der con~erns regaording tne
rick of over relionce on serchrmarking. The
Comemittes s griver for any increased reviard
is greater responsibility or compiesity in the
relevant roie and 1o recannise greater
capooilty ntne ndividaa, ' a groning,
very saitessTul business such o3 ouis, we
e cogrisant of retalmng
©5 TSy Qair INCressing rro
their proven capoliitie: an
‘nthis regard, Market data
+

chares, shareh

our key pROpie
rhet worth froms
track record.

oes prov de

c
d

g usetu vense-checx

FroTr trie mLtiple stens of the review,
tie Committee concluded there wos

"3s o incredse 1o1g)
otent'a for oL Execotve
ctors, The nrenttee beleses 1hot
CCrperating the smorense o the PSP 1o
mrestivse long-tenr performance best
wigns perforrance deiery, stroteg

and sharenatder yaue Trerefore

DrOpOSS 1O INLreGae TRE MTICH N
“rermiaitor the PSP troem 2

LU

v far e CEC and from
<f vase sa.ary for tme 0RO
noeases 1t both sl in-sta

aeines

t-ressotion enaens dng g




Shareholder censultation on proposed
changes

Cur 2027 DRR veas supportea with $3% of
votes 'ntovour, Doring 2022, we consulted
extensively o0 our pobcy and DRR 2022
wmulp*r.eﬂxo* on and engoged with 21 of our
iargest sharenoders, regresenting around
©5% of our reg'ster, as wel' as the key oroxy
agencies. The guality of the interactions
was excelient, and we appreciate the
erngogerment ond vaiuabe feedback. There
was arange of views ana preferences
expressed, but we were pleased that the
overal weight of opinicn was strongly
SLopOrtve.

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation

Fixed pay:

As dhsclosed p'euiousi‘,. Johnny Thomnson's
csh allowance M liew of pensizn

cor it th\O'W wil recuce 1o 4% of bosic pay

from 1 oneary 2023 12 align withithe

*r\t;j'- ity of the UK womeTorce.

l’\(w

5

reCommittee considered Jonnny
omsow’s salary as part of the review, The
Comin tiee 15 awsre that high ofction is
not a solic rotionale for ncregsing executive
ooy, The Commrittes considered the
‘noreased cize and r’or'“r:ie%'\fy of the Grours
idoubed nsire as shown T tne diagram
Ty v e gL a
afb-performing CED. ang concladed that
O D56 DAV NIrease was reqyred as part

of increasing His 1o
appoTIUNity ‘\h"rehc iders askeg s 1o

e ew the Mo eose i the comtext of
imtended vider workforce pay incieases, the
:»ccw\”mc enviranriesr inflagticnary
gaes and the

" LommDensaTion

ren fated oy ows coliea
era. guorter of TEO revaard

o ooard we
av of 6e, wnich
swarded 1o our
- be fove thig

R e

Hf‘wf.: 1ok Cf thess v

rerg e be

wider wore

PSP:

Arising frorn the compeiling case to increase
total compensation for the CEO, the
Cormmittee plars to impiernent the new

PSP maximum this vear for the CEO, subject

1o shoreholder approval of the policy.
Johnry Thomson will receive g PSP award
of 300% of base salary (PSP 2022}, Chiris
Davies will receive a PSP award of 200%
of base salary (PSP 2022) (which will be
pro-rated based on hirm working eleven
months of the year].

A number of shareholders have expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR (provided the
ROATCE underpin remains), and = our
consuitation we discussed increasng the
weighting of three- year CAGR adjusted £PS
growth to 75% of the total award {frorm
50%), with 25% {previousty 50%) remaining
on TSR relative to the FTSE 250 (exciuding
financial services and investment trusts).
As the majority of sharehclders were
supportive, we intend 1o progress with this
change for PSP (2022). We will retain the
ROATCE wnderpin, recognising this s
crinicalty impertant to shareholaers,

During consultction shareholders asked
that we ensure targets are appropriately
stretc'n'mo g?ven the greater quantum of
reward proposed The Committes
recognises Lhot mcreased guanturm of
reward should be accompanied Dy
approprigtely fugh levels of performance

dehvery. In setting targets, we seek to ensure

that the focus on organic growth is strong,
the guality of acguisitions rema’ns high and
that the right risk appetite is maintsined. In
response te feedback. we intend 1o increase
EPS growth required for maxirmum payout
under the PSP from 12% tc 1353% for tne
award i 2022, Tne minirmium threshold will
emain at 5% This provides the right degree

af stretch ambition for Diploma at this time
considering the o ganic growth
opportunities, the acguisition pipeline and
the prevalent market condtions, The Board
wl mairtain o versight of RCATCE. We will
continue 1 revnaw the fevel oF stretch
annuclly for eacn PSP gra~t cyaie,

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluation

John Nichelas retired as Cheir of the Board
in January 2022 ang was succeeded by
David Lowder. Davia joined the Board as
Non-Executive Director and Charr designate
on 19 October 2021, Non-Executive Director
fees were reviewed using equivalent inputs
and increases ore showr on page 133.

The Committee’s perfarmance was
assessed as oort of the annuai Board
evaluation. | am plegsed 1o report that
the Commitiee ¢ regorded as operating
effectively and that the Boora takes
regssurance from the gquality of the
Committee’s work.

Congclusion

in closing | would once agaoin fike to thark
sharehoders for tneir ergogemeant over this
last yeor. \We wili rmaintain a close dia‘ogue
as we seek 1o deliver o competitive,
rmotivating pay framework that s tige
aligned <o sharenolder experience whilst
maintainng good governonce standards.
Itrust vou find this report useful and loox
forward 1> receiving your sLpport at the
AGM on 18 Jonuary 2023

Andy Smith
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 November 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA’S APPROACH TOC REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Our Purpose: Diploma’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quaility, scalable businesses for organic growth

Remuneration
Principles

Long term incentive:
Performance Share Plan

Short term incentive:
Annual Bonus

Strategic pillar

Oper(-J_-t_.‘_r:g ;;Togt—_ﬁ* Remuneration afigned to
business strategy and premoting
the long-term success of the
Cormpany.

Supperting creation of
long-term shareholder value.

EPS (ROATCE underpin):

1: 50% 75%

GROWTH

Revenue: Relative TSR:

25% 25%

2:
SCALING

3.

DELIVERING VALUE

RESPONSIBLY

Free cash:

25%

MNon-financial KPIs and targets in place, flexibility to

introduce DWVR {ESG) metrics into remuneration inchuded

in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

Providing on appropriate balance
between remuneration elements
which are transparent, stretching
and rigorously applied.

Providing a baolance between
immediate and deferred
rermuneration and encouraging

@ high performance culture.

- Remuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to shareholders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
irmplernentation reviewed annually.

EXECUTIVE - Emphasis an pay for performance and alighment with shareholders on sustainable iong-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annuai Bonus and PSP measured on a balanced set of defined financial
measures linked to strategy.
- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quantum for
different types of role. Group governance (including pay equity).
- Reviewed annually.
- Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variable pay, using a blend of Group and local
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES

WORKFORCE

- Wider participation in Group PSF.

- Reviewed annually.

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.

- Fair and competitive in local market.
- Linked to colleague value proposition.
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) ? Maximum vesting
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iciplined portiolic g cwal. Adjusted EPS
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Hoday 2bajnag

. TAGR
Scaling ’
A vea of exciting

) ROATCE:
crastrasture for ¢! o
oprating mocsl evolvirg the stractore:, 1730/0

< ::pabilixz- arz ol ol the Group o soale.

Relative TSR:
percentile rank

1%

(% yoar performonog)

DVR - Engagement index Flexibility to introduce

adUBUIBAOG 93RI0di0T)

Eacellert farane ¢ o
FOHTI2 T s E mbeo DVR I ’7'\?’7}/0‘(;' ‘
202 Y

DVR metrics
Aoear 3 rore corsistont and robbazt Scope 1& 2 emissions !n remu n.erOtIC)-n
ortieg. 10,615 tonnes CO, e included in Policy.

thaseline vear)

comvrercial strategies ard opeiations,

Tarpsts sot for the st tie s,
Waste to landfill
60%

Hiret year o muedsdreniset

S)UBWIALDIS [DISUDULY

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal Action

Support lower paid colleagues most Wage increase for colleagues paid less than £40k of 7.5%,
affected by the cost of living crisis which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

UOIIDULIOL] JayRO

Retain talent in the competitive e Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
talent market Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-term success PSP participation increased to ca. 50 participants (2021: ca. 35
participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).

To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process

Chunges to Remuneratlon Pollcy and its |mplementat|on

Sy otpees morl 7

1. Excellent performance and increased scale and comp]exity
of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 11

Adjusted earnings per share
12 13 14 1 1% 7 18

FY12-18 EPS

el
-
o -+
- ~ 5 :
— 1 <o #
g |
Lal

The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin

FY22 revenue:
£1,012.8m

FY1% revenue:
£544.7m

Revenue growth

FY19-22

$ Cortrols - Seals & Life Sciences
Adjusted m’ ng Profit £97.2
'
opemtmg morgm 17.8%)

4, Shareholder consultation on prépo;d changes:

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.

2. Wider stakeholder context {
considered during Policy review:

- Ambitious growth plans.

- Aftracting, retaining and incentivising
management.

- Increased market worth of
management given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views.

-~ Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro environment affecting
workforce-inflation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance.

~ Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colleague engagernent {Engagement
index 79%).

- Market developments in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakehoiders.

3. Market iné@ﬁt:
used to ‘sense check”:

a) Information on UK pay levels for !
companies of similar size FTSE 150-100
{Dipioma: FTSE 111, 30 September 2022).

b} There are few direct peers for Diplomna.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison {RS Group plc, Bunzl plc,
Inchcape plc, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
plc, Rentokil Initial ple, Howden Joinery
Group Plc, Spectris plc, Halma plc, DS
Smith ple, Travis Perkins ple, Johnson
Matthey plc). Some within this list
are larger than Diptoma but provide
useful insight.

¢} Variable pay targets for FTSE 250. i

- Conversations with shareholders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and streteh in performance targets.




2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale
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Flexibility toincluds ESG metrics o ng reet polioy pericd.

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Shareholding
guideiine

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomson
(CEQ)

Base nay: £754,000
Benefits funa
Penzion: T41.085
‘codvalent to 4
of base pay from

1 Jan Z23)

‘

Max: 300%: buse pay
PSP (2027 200%
nase Eay
Performarce period:

Holding reguirerment:
300%: baze pay

Mar: 125% base pay
Target: £2.5% base

poy

three yoors
Helding pericd: fve
years tram groart

Holding requirenient:

S0, of MSR “or 2
veor: aiter the
tarrminotion aotls

Chris Davies’
(CFO)

Base pay: £450,000
Benefits tun:d
Pensicr: 113,000
(equivalent to 4%
ot base poy)

Max: 200% base pay
PSP {20622y 200%
base pay
Performance pericd:
three years

Holding period: five
years frorm grant

Hetding requircrment:
250% baze pay

Max: 125% base oay
Target: 62.5% base
oy

aﬁnge from
2021

CFG bose poy 6%
increase;

CED pension reduced,
New CFO appaointed

Shareholdirg
guidelire ircreased in
line with new PSP
moxinig

Pelicy maxirmam
increased for CEC &
CRO

PSP award increased
for CEO

New CFO appointed

No change

Holding regeirement:

504 o the MEE for
z afterthe
termingtion date

I~creased post-
cassation guiageline
fromy 12 months to
2 yoars

T S e
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Rernuneration Policy

" o AR o) RNV e RIS J
T ® T R !

Executive Directors

Component Purpose and {ink to strategy Operation
Base satary Tooyernirondoetan Saz G-I

Pensions . _-eicoe il )
Benefits T e -




Component Opergtion
Annual Lo

Performance N - i
Bonus Plan - - 3 :

Q

MBIALIIA

yoday mbayoang

Performance
Share Plan
{PSP)

asupwisAce youodio)
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Cperation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

¢ oeyn, .

ood.

Selection of performance measures and targets f

e, el U

llustration of applicatio

Z .

Johnny Thomson

New CFO Remuneration package

Iz




Consideration of sharehoider views

O

MINA LA

Differences in remuneration pelicy for other employees

wodey nbajnis

Service contracts

saubwIsacQ #3ouodior)

]
=4
]
3
f,
a
w
-
[]
-
[
3
(1]
3
-
@

UOIIOWIIOLN] 1940




REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

el

R 4
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DOIES VRS L Todh R DN A IR Weteleerald o
Compensation o st
pavable upon
Contract Unexpired Notice early

date term penod termination Malus and clowback

Slagn ZU0S et ' MAarue oo RN
D e - S s
DT mooes ’ Tl T
1 . " - 1 . H -,
Payment for loss of office
T Do T et
2 - Ties Lttt

Remuneration for new appointrments




post-ermnployment shareholding requirements

’ M T e .

o

MIIAIIA

- “ - o e
Committee discretion
e e e s Mo oo w
ottt E o
o
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H 107 LTl =
[
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e et L Q7T nIT T tE TOrTs e »
e T -
3 o : =3
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. . e
Troe Tommem e ey s R T ko) Bto it Chair and Non-Executive Directors
e 3 soandnne T - T o T Recruitment and term
oo Trebrnendoe e '
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Policy in respect of external board appointments for
Executive Directors
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REMUNERATION PQLICY
CONTINUED
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
Jornry Tharmsen barharc

2022 2021 2022
£000 £000 £000

w3 ' ™ PR 355

Tiarc nemorn - s 19

e T T 71 e 15

Total fixed o 807 =00 399
i e 46

MBIAIBAQ)

R S N
o N 1.725 : 340 . 2,065
ar= [ARCTE F

282 i 110 72

Total variable 2,951 4l 923 LT X,8724
Single total figure 3,758 sl 1,322 “z 5,080

oday 216a3oayg

Departure of Barbara Gibbes and appointment of Chris Davies (audited} o
Srarrn s redes LA g ot cULS oot Do Dlep e O o Trnr ter e an Tes Lp CFT e ine Tooooe e B o
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Executive Directors’ base salary {unaudited} g
Tt Nz e DIED e el e top e - x toe T . T o o
L " ' = It (SN 1) [d

w

Salary from Sa.an trom
10October i Dcrober
2022 200

£000 £00 Increaser sclary

IR - 754 Sl

ce T Tl onIvtEn TNl e 02D 450 Coo
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Pension {audited}

2022 2021

Contribution Pension Contribution Pensior

rate % of paid as cash rote % of paid as cosh

base salary £000 bose soiary £000

LT 10 7 e Bo
Sarn oz Drbbes 4 15 4 4

Annual performance bonus (audited)
Bonus pay out for year ended 30 September 2022

Tme Hsrd anprove o bodaet oo vesr R eats

SLt e ven”

QT TR

Perforrance measure ; _Targets for 2022
' 1.y

R,

Bonus awarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 September 2022

Bose salory 2022 actua’ borus - ge © percentage of 2021 bose waiary 2022 bonus
T T . T h o Financial o V o
o 1000 Minimum On target Maximum  objectives Total bonus ~ £000

52 o £ : 125% 125% 889

Loz uLes il 125% 125% 456

Bonus awards for year ended 30 September 2023
ety [ s SONLE e




Long-term incentive awards (audited)

v E_— -t

T e T T T

Performance conditions

0
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Awards vesting in

R
joiaded
"t

-

ot e s
a eTnnE

EPS at
30 Sep CZAGR Maoximurm Momanm vesteg
Base EPL 2022 ir EPS target award

1094 020 2

2022 Median Upper quortile  Maximum award Yeuted award
BT §.2470 0 ¢ A
et e o . R LR s SN Tttt T
Shore price Share Share
ar aote price at Proportion Performance appreciotion
ol grent 30 bep 2022 of award slernent elerert Teta.
pence vesting £ 002
s 100% el
: 100% 19,374 B N
' R . -
Dividend equivalent payments (audited
-, e T TPLAE S L IR B

Long-term incentive plan - awards granted in the year (audited
e T ey e SR R e e e L]

(audited)

Outstanding share-based performance awards




Diploma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan (audited)

Shares Shares
Shates over which over which
Face value of cver which awards awards
#Market  *he owarc at End ot awards heic granted Vested Lapsed keld at
price at gate  date of gram pertormance o1t Dt during during the during the 30 Sep
of aworg £00G penod Venting dote W21 theyear period period 2022
Johnny Thomson
e e : : - 85,481 - -
: % - - - 74,804
DN 57,007 - - 57,007
T TmITA - 19,374 - -
- - (8,601) 17,201
=L 20,485 - (13,656) 6,829

ysoday a1baypsig

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited} A
I RN S LN RN R PR F U § PSRNTTSs RS LIS el TS T o (U T G U L )
B Tetol fees -a
2022 2023 b
£000 £000 %
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests {audited)

In options over shares

Vested Options
Year of Opuons as at Exercised during tre unexercised as Exercise Tarhest norma!l
vesting * 01 2021 in veat year  at 30 Sep 2022 price! exercise aate Expiry dote
: T RN : - £
- 85,481 £1
19,374 £1
Y h . E LI - - - - - Z
Directors’ interests in ordinary shares
Y
As ot 30 Sep 2022 A Gt 30 Sep 2021
Options with Dptione with
Ordinary  Options vested performance Dot one vertea pe-formanze
shares  but unexercised measures tut urexerssed mecsures
KRN R 102,330 85,481 131,811 - Lo
S - 5,082 19,374 24,030 T AP

Interest c orainary snaves
As at30Sep 2022 A: ct 5C Sep 202°
2500 -
9,045 -
7,545 s
5,045 B
2,045 z
640




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive pay ratio (unaudited)
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR (unoudited)

Actua! share

CEC single Annual benu awara «eiting
hgure of toral against Jgoinst
rerunerotion maximum PG XaImMmurm
Name {1000} oppertunity CppUTtunity
Johnny Themson 100% 100%
! . . ISR A
ot Tunnmias o0
[oihiie
25 a
T
oty
At v
oL A
2022 2001 Change
£m L £
<t . 1775 = a
P [l 56.2 L s

ot -

Percentage change

in remuneration of Directors and employees [unaudited)
1o Lotk - v : h s 3 e

Ge) Penzian change (%) Toxabre benefits cnang

bBase sc.avy“ee change | 3
2022 Faory 2020 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
vs 2021 v 2020 we 2NG ws 2021 vy 2020 ve 2% vs 2021 ve 2020 ve 2019

. _ Nz B - _ No .
A +3 charge - -18 . -t +2 -4 chenge +3 - T
Mo No _
+7 inange I~ +7 change Tz +2 - T =
[S1s
RN n/a change e
HNe _
et -69 chanze -
Ne 811
o G e +3 whange chonge
L +& -
- ']
DxrsmnE e +3  manae B
SenTome +185 L o
Employees of the
Parent Company nfa R Con n/a Tz - n/a Tz Tz n/a T -
. . _ B . No MNe No .
Senior management team +7.5 - - +7.5 + -I  chonge cnange  chemge +22 -




Executives and senior management below the Board

Lo ~ s - -

(unaudited) )

Shares aver

Share which Shares

Foce varue of aver which, awards over which

Market price  tne aword [ng of oward: hele granted Vested Lopsed awards held
a1 aote of performange ot Jcrober during the during the during the ot 30 Sep
cward pertod 2021 year year year 2022

- 29,546 4,460 -

- - 9,612 39,860

Lul A L L - 102,258 - 8,086 94,172

GOVERNANCE
Remuneration Committee
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The Remuneration Committee Report
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisors (unaudited)

TR e Tool e s te

Orther cervices
providen te the

Appomted by Services provided 15 1he Committes Company Fees (£}
T S itoe o oA U8
o LF . S g LTt L = o T

Shareholder voting at previous Annuol Generol Meeting (unoudited)
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

Shareholders
Incorporation and principal activity

L e T

Controcts of significance a

e AN ol eI s R NI

nd change of control
- ST

Annual General Meeting Restrictions on transfer of shares
T s Roara g Sl S . : Te e Y, et na ey R O Tk BN o Al S ML SIS

Substantial sharehoidings

Percentage of Percertoge
orgimary shores of ardinary
(September share capito -
2022 ‘Noverber 2022} Ll ST N

Authority to make market purchases of own shares

T

Liability insurance and
. date -

oyt 4

O

MIIAIBA
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DIRECTORS® REPORT
CONTINUED

Disclosures required

st R

Non-financial information

s P

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial stotements
Trie Dreciots ore reny

Lrts ond e finae

e jolabe}

L ZTD

Non-financial informatiol

Financial
Results and div

idends
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Revenué- 7 - R T 1,012;8

. I i ) ] (638.3)
Gross profit - - S ' ' 3748

D R e e {25.9) - G
Lottt st (204.3) ol
Operating profit : N
TNancl x e A, met - (14.8) o
Profit before tax 129.5 =t
Ty orpenisg = (34.1) i
Profit for the year 95.4 e

et

-t oo

P

R e L T e T 1 R TR - 469 LaL
ngprofit T 7 T T T T
e e o i . {11.8} R
Adjusted profit before tax S - B ST Tmee 3
Adjusted earnings per share
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022

Profit for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement
: BRI AR Ee LTt o I 10.6 <
TSl nTay o7 TeTr ULt T g e LG el U (2.8} L e,
' S 78 ‘s

Iterns that may be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement
T T L L L o R 76.8 e
- 4.5 Ua

R Lo grteadr ot s Jrminin el s o me T e e = {0.4) -
drn 1o ote e § _ I L)) e
79.8 o

Totol Other Comprehensive Income 87.6

Total Comp@xensive income for the yecr 183.0 e

'

—
&
b
[ X)
i,
o

Q
b
e ]
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o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Shere Share Transiatiure Heag nig Fetcines  Shareholders’ Mingnity Total
copital pre Teneye s ve enTn ngs equity tereste equity
Note £m Eori frr fr £ m £ m

At 1 October 2020 B i i HE .= B27.0 i 530.7

PEEEN - - e c T 60.8 o 60.5
e “ - 1.8 - 1.8

: 1.0 1.0
T T P - (0.5) (0.5}
Lt ': : - 0.9

o ‘ . , = {0.9) (0.9)
e e ; : - o 0.7
- _ ] ; ; . (52.9) e (53.2)

I

At 30 September 2021 o el o - - 536.3 - 541.0
T AT K = LT 182.2 T 183.0
R < LT 2.8 2.8

. e 0.4 0.4
_ _ : : o (2.8) (2.8)

o - : : - : (1.3)
1.9 (1.9)

. - - - - . 1.2 1.2
ce e - - . - - - C (0.3)
- - - o (56.2) - (56.4)

A1 30 September 2022 o 63 1886  88.8 32 3751  662.0 6.2 668.2
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Nan-current assets
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ST oD e art
Leases -1 antoof v cegets
Retireris o bene! © oosets

Deferreg 170 asgets

Current assets
e tanies

drgoe gno other o le vables

Net current assets
Totol assets less current liabilities
Non-current lobilities

Tt T

Re s=we tbene ¢

MNet assets
Equity

Shote e T

S Tr
Temme el e

Vreda L orengt

el

A ST R R
Total shareholders’ equity
LRI SR

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A s 20

Nere

[N

Doh

)
S )

G

]

2022
£fm

372.3
455.0
4
49.6
62.4
6.4
0.2
950.0

217.4
169.9

47
429.0

{30.5)
{189.5)
(11.8)
{19.0)
(12.7)
(263.5}
165.5

1,115.5

(340.1)
{56.4)
(12.4)
(38.4)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022
Neote £m

Opercﬁng p:zoﬁf ' o I h T B 144.3

s VI A R E T BN S L U 446.9 S4d
R T 18.1 R
T e N P e {28.7) o
Cash flow from operating activities T 180.6 PN
R T T {15.0) :
T ops o (40.6) sl
Net cash from operating activities 125.0 T
Cash flow from investing activities T -
- -t Qs T IT u s prgved _ (173.0) il
i- {7.1) =
@ Ioit diomesd 13.7 .
. {14.3) Z
- R . (1.1) .
RN O LR I ::L PR R LTt BRI 9.9 ’5
Net cash used in investing activities ) __(171.9) -

Cash flow from financing activities

O T N R L - {56.2) Fls
- e SR e {0.2)
e, e e T (0.3) -
TR UV LIl DL DT s mes ot T -
B B BRI R Pl E e I LT I L SR (2.8) -
R s 154.8 N
SeToL Tt Tl ok (20.0) e
S I A T L AT _{10.9) -
Net cash from financing activities S 44 <
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents S 175 L
Duenooedioo eT oo ertl o L s sy 24.8 =
e R L T L P LI I TIC (0.6) v
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year T #3  lz:
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'
2022 221
Note £m as]
Free cash flow 20 120.4 -
Lotel el Do o 133.9 n

Free cosh How conversion % - 0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. General information

Business Sector analysis

~e




o N - - fe 5ue B Seals _ Lortrow _ Lompoote Group
2022 2022 202 2022 2022 2021 2022 pleval
£m £m L £m £m £ £m tm
A T 78.0 4 294.4 T 4819 2 - | 9543  w oz
EEUERIEE 10.6 37.0 10.9 - 58.5
) 188.6 - ° 3314 4928 - 1,028 54
' 39.7 2 57.0 205 104,0 - (18.2} < 182.5 LR
ST Cnee It DTt
LIRS ’ 1.3 ) 5.6 N 1.8 T . . 8.7
Adjusted operating profit 41.0 R 62.6 R 105.8 oz (18.2) Y 191.2 2
e R e I R Tulh
e 15 E (16.6) (30.5) e (1.3) (46.9) =&
Operating profit - 425 Ee 46,0 i 753 2T (19.5) T | 1443 ol
D niiee 74.0 = 2075 s 2.5 ek - 493.0 iz
106.2 A 125.2 T 1409 - - - 3723 Ll
IR Tele s 74.9 20 100.2 Z 2799 z - 455.0 o<
B 2551 e 43209 Taii o 4323 < - 1,320.3 0o 0
0.2 ‘4 0.2 a4
4.7 R 4.7 s
1.8 - 1.8 -
6.4 6.4
8.6 - 8.6 -
255.1 4329 - 6323 . : 58.7 2| 1,379.0 vt a
{(41.7) S1L. (103.3) B (92.6) - i (237.6) -
(38.4) T (38.4) o
oAl £n L e (31.4) i (31.4) :
. - (32.8) < (32.8)

Total liabilities

(1033}

(370.6) .

. (473.2) .=

~ (370.8)
~(710.8)
568.2

Net assets 213.4 S 329.6 {414.5) -
Other Sector information
Lfe Seiences Secle C Conven Conrme | Group
2022 260 2022 2022 25 2022 200 2022 2021
£m frr. £m £m ] £m £ £m £
: : 8.0 i 37 _ 2.7 08 | 153 =
e A L 2.9 o4 3.5 = 4.6 < Q.2 N 1n.2 e
Revenue recoghi&ion - - -
176.4 315.6 Z 492.8 - 984.8 e
e e 12.2 158 = - - 28.0 Tl
188.6 331.4 oT 492.8 : - 1,012.8 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin

Adusted operating Trading capital
~ . Revenue o preft B Non-current ossets ﬁv"f}l‘_(_:yf‘i B . Capita expenditdre
2022 2021 2022 253 2022 207 2022 2 2022 2021
£m i £m Em £m £ £m Lrr B im i
209.7 ZrE 20 193.6 = c 2022 =4 3.4 LS
166.7 [ 29.3 G 1691 . 179.8 I 1.7 -
561.0 4758 129.5 S 519.2 2450 414.2 Ll 8.9 a0
75.4 [l 1.4 T 57.1 RS 62.3 i 1.3 LE
1,012.8 &7 4 191.2 izg 939,0 £3CI 1,058.5 B 153 -0
N TR e g ries GEFETTATYGY L ERTI TEDL DY s 1IRETC TS TTR BT CETEERT D TTTE ST
4. Group employee costs
Average number of employees
2022 200
P BT AnTes ’ ) 7 423 - iE
s 1,174 LEE
981 221
Tl ot 36 i
Number of er\-\'pl.rt';yees—woverdge - i 2,614 A
Number of employees — year end 2,909 Laeg
Group employee costs, including key management
2022 2021
£m £
S T B (e Bt 154.8 B
S I A L 13.3 s
R A 6.6 o
Rl SR o 2.8 P E
177.5 Lo %
Key managerment short-term remuneration, including Directors 2022 .
£m £m
5.0 -
0.4 -
0.2 Jz
2.4 s
8.0 2
2022 2021
£m i
Cent Tt s D orene 0.5 =
S NS 2.6 .
3.1 _=




5. Financial expense, net

Interest (expense)/income and similar charges

LA S R (1.0) T

,-.
e
i
MBIAIBAD

Net interest expense and similar charges

PR M

6. Tax expense
2022 207
£m £

Current tax

wioday o1basnng

Total current tax 40.7 P

Deferred tax

22UDWIAACD 33DI0dI0D

Total deferred tax T B R X ) ,
Total tax on profit for the year 341 e s

o
=]
a
=]
B,
a
w
~*
[+]
+
m
3
[1:]
3
t
"

2022 202
£m L

Profit before tax o 120.5 P
T T : ’ - 24.6 R

* EE s LIy 6.7 <
B T T (0.1} L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022
pence per share

202t
pence per share

15.0
301

45.1

8, Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share
S ) R AP

SLther On

Adjusted earnings per share

LAt BEPL el o nofnd o crms I e 0TS I RE
2022 202t 2022
pence pershare  pence per shote £m
. 1295 _
(34.1) S
AT et (0.7) -
Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 761 LE 4.7 -
A AT TN ST IS LA LT SO S DU SR T S e S i e TSN

PR, ] ) 3.4

Adjusted earnings o B 107.5

9. Goodwill

iife Sciences
£

Contrels

£m

e - P -
B - i PRES i




Trade Total
names ocquisition Other
Castormer Supplier brands and intangible intangible
resationships reictcships dctohases assets assets
£ i L £m
Cost
T eweper (00 - - 183.2 7.6
Lo - - 1.4
e , i L4 306.8 0.2
T : . (3.6) (0.9)
L3 e Ls - {6.9) (0.4)
- - (16.8) {0.3)
R 4627 76
z - - 1.0
Lol . Sl s 99.9 0.8
e - (1.1
B TINee DU S = . % 69.9 1.0
At 30 September 2022 5479 = 309 53.7 632.5 9.3
Amortisation
e ) _= 96.0 4.6
el - 4 18.7 -
e - - 14.4 0.7
e : (3.6} (0.7)
s z (5.4} (0.1)
o - {2.3) (0.3)
- e - 17.8 4.2
< 4.0 -
oo S = = 38.4 0.8
- {0.4)
TelThrnne Tty er L . - - 17.3 0.6
At 30 September 2022 1401 24,6 12.8 177.5 5.2
Net book value
At 30 September 2022 407.8 6.3 40.9 4.1
e T Tt e e LT = . 74
Eronarmmg e
- v [

O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

VT. \«'\4 )‘: '—’". b 'T
- P T B L ’ oy
= e 3 ] . S
- ToIa ot S soe o Teng et ool i TTAUDE ey
Freehioio Lensehmd Plart ond Hespirar fiena
propertes Dropartes equiprient eguipment Totai
fm £m frm £m £m

I~
N

T
v

i
"
b
i

I}
1
I~
m
o
b
L]

"
=
I

N
—_
o

[
a
(r

y o

N
-—
—
(=]
[}
—

. LT T e e T i T - T 12.3
At 30 September 2022 o 3.6 o 13_2_ ) 61.2 197 977
Depreciation

T e UCL . Tl — < 35.4

>

e OTe ST T - L . S 7.4
At 30 September 2022 11 52 37y 9 - 484

Net book value
At 30 September 2022 2.5 8.0 28.5 10.6 49.6

St AL Toyrarr e 200




12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Land & Pignid Mator T& ot
bundinge rachiner, cehizies eqaipment Total
Lrr. £ fm i £m
Cost
S . ECa Z I = 38.9

Q
- E o {2.6) ,_‘§
S e - (0.9) :
AR i - {0.7) £
Gt er Z: 61.6

S T LTI T [ - ) o 6.9
At 30 Septemnber 2022 1 E 0.8 8.3 17 e
Depreciation

yoday 21693048

[ . (4 - - 1.4

At 30 September 2022 253 03 30 0.9 s B
Net book value g
At 30 September 2022 55.8 0.5 5.3 0.8 62.4 -
S S L [ ~ - g o
L re D R ; ) ¢
<
@
1 o = L ' LRt i ;
o
- ]
- - . S SRCHI - ]
~ R - et .- ®

o 2022 ey

_———— £fm Frr
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=
a
3
2.
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w
+
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wt

LT Sl L 69 - g
At 30 September 691 - 4
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£m i 9-:
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S e e e el a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

13. Deferred tax

oSt e T T T

e e

[aalS

[
Ve UL

e ange ottt eTid

At30 Septem ber

7 £nf| £
T(21.9) e
6.6 5
{17.6) n e
(3.9
(1.4) o
(38.2) o

L e SrE IO 3iedn e Tenn £ ot oF offiet gng trere 1pee oSttt e
B ‘As_se:t_s_ . Liabiities Net o
2022 2621 2022 " 2022 2021
£m £ fm £Em £m
041 Ta {5.8) . (5.7} b
- (42.0) Tr {42.0) e
i - (1.0) (1.0) .
3.1 < (0.1) . 3.0 ot

2022

_ I £m Im

F - B ) 7.4 o
2022 204

£m Lo

ooo - S 153.9 i
. (7.2) -
h - i ) ) 151.7”777 i‘.i’

= 9.8 I

e BN 8.4 tz

169.9 T=



2022 um
£m £

[l ke R 7 B 7 o o . 41.3 e
: v 70.1 L&
S oo 12.6 25
18.0
L 16.9 Ll
B o - 158.9 R

Dot

s

MIIAIBAD

2022
£m

124.9
G 26.8
R R N 7.2 s
158.9 e

2022 2321
£m £

1odoy oibeiniyg

20.7 T4

[P . 4.5 oA
e - e 1.6 .

- o ] 2.8 oE

2022 2021

3.6

22URUIAACG a3ba0di0n)

2022 2021
fm B - Em

SIURWIIINIG [PI2UDUYLY

: i 964 2E
25.8 CRe
1.0 =5
- o 56.3 a7
189.5 AR
Ce caane 1ttt s - i RN e - -
2022 207
_ - N B - - €m £

— T ' 7 o ) 24.1 Sus
A 50.2 ez
e e R L 0.8 s
oL 14.1 o
7.2 o

96.4 s

UOI3OWI0SU| 13430




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 201
UK uss cs Euro Other Total uss cs ture Tthe iotal
- Em fm  Efm  Em  Em £m g Erm £n fm ke Em
. bl M1} 15.2 71 2.3 7.8 6.4 38.8 B L= e s Iz
STt e emLte - 0.1 1.8 ) - 1.0 2.9 ) o5 ] R =
15.2 7.2 4. 7.8 7.4 41.7 T4 Tl

v

de e

ial instruments

. i

q) Credit risk

s R S




b) Liquidity ris
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

10.3
2.6 LA
1.7 T

d) Interest rate risk

e) Fair values

Cel ey e e e =

Trade and other receivables/payables

e = S s L=rr DT T Lt et TRl R R e i T S T TT =
Borrowings
Other liabilities

T e e




2022
£m

7.4
24.0

31.4

19.0
12.4

2022

Dhecount urwind

Foraigr
Foyrments Exchange
£ Err
P
T
(7.1) 0.5

0

MRIALIBA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20, Minority interests

LT LG

e adi.ctrents

At 30 September 2022 6.2

21, Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

o Ll .-

cuscience




A ST R Sl B Pt =T 7oLt e 1. “vnoet = Fliode IR vie S tolat il = R
R&G Hooustience Drhers Total
Book value Foir value Book value far value Book va ue Fo- vatue Book value Fair value
- R S Em L _Em £ o ko Em o Em
Lexloe ThTUILw ints AN i3 Cos - 98.2
- o Lt 4 - (0.7) {18.5)
T e e PPl i g o7 O N 6.7 6.7
orlne WA TE 4 z E A 28.2 26.1
13T T P ZE e T CE o 22.7 22.3
Teals Tr Ot T - PR T - - 4 N (28.9) {29.7)

Net assets acquired 148

10.4

25.0 28.0

105.1

I - e - - 80.6
R e A - . - - {2.5)
s ~E 4 - 178.3
Lnenoar = W B (6.1)
=T L 172.2
AR AR N Lt T e 11.0
TJotal investment 99.12 49.9 34.2 183.2
- - Ta - i - - L L - i A=
Acquisitions revenue and adjusted operating profit
) Lt ot EU Lrnteroe 20D caact im e n e o OO e e v - . STt
F-c forme
Pre farmc Tiperating wperating
Revenue A, - revenue or. T 4g, prabt!
AIqursition dote £m £rr £ Lm i £m
o A A o L i i :
e § - 4 . -

8.7

P R AT - - R -
a4 S AR NP z " T - [N .
e 1o - - - -1 - S -
- - _ PR -

O

MIIAIBA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

22. Reconciliation of operating profit to cash flow from operating activities
2022 2022 201 2021

£m £m _ fror Im
Operating profit 144.3 ins T
Logus i enles Oz cther Cnrpel rote O 46.9 al s

Adjusted operctin_g profit ' ' ' 191.2 4k

e T VRITIr T tooh e v ol e DlslTE O el -

S
'R
1

239 257

2.8 &

Saow s a0 jeren (0.6) b=

(1.6) S-S

(6.5) Eael

Ttier om-casn o et 0.1 o
Non-cash itelr'n;;:;ud other ____ ) o "7:;7;718.1 7 ce

N
3
1%
n
n
o

Obercting cash flow before changes in worrliciﬁrg capital
R il IS S {35.6) o
P At (10.6) e
CLITC T T EUE T D oann mayninee 175 .
Increase in working copital (28.7) Sl

Cash How from operating activities 180.6 T e

23. (Net debt)/cash funds
Tre v et o deont e S A

Excranige Drhe: non-cast,
1Ot 202 Casr flow meavermerts ruoverierts 30 Sep 2022
im i im irr £m

P J48 S 3 Ty
e _ ) A L AT L (370.6)
Net debt i 14, e i oL (328.9)

Exchange  Dthe non-cart,

10e1 2020 Cast Fow Movements FIGve et 30 hep 2027

im i i im fr

= E] Dl TLoe : 4
Cash funds/{net debt) g - - B P




N 3 - -

24. Retirement benefit asset and obligat

s heeo b z
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- e
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o Holdings PLC UK Pension Scheme
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Pension surplus / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2022 20
- £m £m
20.7 S
3.9 z
7.3 ok
31.9 357

2022

I igte Pt ozl e e e 5

(0.8)

Amounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement

c) Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

z S G T ST e T Dy A e

Actuarial gain credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

2022
£rm

2.7

(0.6}
(8.5}

(6.4)

2022
£m

41.0
0.7
0.8

{15.7)
(1.3)

25.5




f) Analysis of movements in the present value of the Scheme assets
2022 202

31.9 e
coner o . e T PRE T N ERR TS O S R

Assets
e Ete b [ FR L INR T i T R D LEETT T A e e D Gercerene 2000 0o
e . LAy ,_' 3( “ - < B

2022 2021

% P

Ll AT : 28 -
A e 12 |

3ioday 316931038

2022 250 2L20
o .

== 7 T T 3.6 e CIE

3.2 o s s
et iarli moe e - P 3.2 D
T 5.3 o

()
[+]
o
o
o
=
o
e
w
(]
o
<
13
=
b=
Q
3
[+]
-]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on the Group’s future cash flows

TLDAr, b oregued T T 8I7 £t oL TNl D

The Kubo Pension S

Aorlmon unies it ture Strmer e o ) ) ) (13.5)}

Pension scheme net deficit -

e et i hr LIt g 3k TEIL Do D D00 e er AT @Et_m o m g aget L FalS sene poan e

Amount ChQrge;ﬂm{iﬁg prof’itviir:"the Consolidated income Statement {0.5)

c} Analysis of moverment in the pension deficit

a
£m irrL
- - - 2.2 <
So T e LT TTen - e t 0.5 N

e {0.5) [
cesctente s S evs Dot ot on 1 il (2.1) s
; elrte (0.1) L.
At 30 September -

L, e e

d) Amounts recognised in the Coensolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income
ST DT T T TLUTE LT, aoted e T L

S e ST 2022 2021
£m im
(1.3) :
4.2
L - ) . {(0.4) D
ST s overrert s TR A {0.4}

Actuarial gain credited in the Consolidated Statement of Cormrprehensive income 2.1 R

I

Principol actuarial ossumptions for the Kubo Scheme at balance sheet dates
2022

Semg e it soer e mieeme 7 0%
: : : : 1.0% T
e 2.3% -
e 1.0% NS
Aot BVG2020 BRI

[
=
=]

Sensitivities

n
o
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group's future cash flows

1 St -
e -3 e ER TS b YT motamt - i v s U0 NE e
g AN - I R B
2022 202
N . L
D
o1 : 11 sk
el o 0.4 x
: ms 1.5 Iz
- - i (S S ~ar
26. Exchange rates
B i T L R R EE TSR I NIRRT I E mpmaE L aT
Avarage Ciesing
2022 2021 2022 2621

1.53
1.14
1.10
1.74

27. Ahernative performance measures

[ SO TR S LT e ST

271 Adjusted operating profit and odjusted operating margin

. RS O STt R R e e B o

—r e 1 -
- 1 - MR -
[ = v
Rt

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating margin

27.2 Adjusted profit

before tax
AL b AUV TR

- . T N A

Adjusted operc%ing proﬁ?t-m

Adjusted p;g{-lﬁef-o;é-:t-czx
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022 200 2022 2021
pence per share  pence pe' share im - Em

o (0.7) g
Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 76.1 s 94.7 =5
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27.4 Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion
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27.5 Trading capital employed and ROATC
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27.7 Bividend cover
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Going concern

Lrmdared fansiy stotements
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1.6 Employee benefits
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1.2.a. New accounting standards adopted
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1.3 Acquisitions
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1.5 Revenue recognitio
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

1.7 Foreign currencies
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1.8 Taxation
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1.9 Property, plant and equipment
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1.11 Impairment of t

LT

yoday sibayniyg

a) impairment of goodwill
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1.10 Intang
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Trade recewables and Ioss ollowcnce f) Borrowmgs

b) Trade pcyables
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- 1.14 Investments {fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income)

c) Cash and cash equivalents
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1.1? Related parties
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1.20 Accounting standards, interpretations and amendments
to published standards not yet effective
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1.21.3 inventory provisions [estimate)

1.21 Significant accounting estimates and critical judgements
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ERLIRTEMEER A2

Fixed assets

Hepe Y 2Nl

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
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Creditors: @mounts falling due within ene year
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T COMPANY STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 20 SEPTEMBER 2022

a) Accounting policies
a.t) Basis of accounting
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) Investments

Srores i oo Lodterfov e e oot L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit approach

Overview
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The scope of our audit
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Key audit matters
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Fey gudit matter How our gudit oddressea the key audit matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

How we tailored the audit scope

Jd

feancial stateients Parent Company




Conclusions relating to going concern
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Corporate governance statement
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

Reg.stered choe aadress”
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Feaisteres office adaress”
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Strategic Report Corporate Governance | Financial Statements Other Information
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcements (provisional dates)

e
ey Sa IR TEAat i)
o Website
o A Doy s norn e dulmr -
Annual Report & Accounts
[ S L D I S S B M LIS

S

Share Registrar
Computershare Investor Services PLC




ADVISORS

Corporate Stockbrokers
Numis Securities

B S T L -
P o 1o

Barclays Bank PLC

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

e

Solicitors
Simmons & Simmons LLP

cad

HSBC Bank pic

N Toee Tl e

MBIAIIAD

1soday oibaypayg

9IUDUJIAAOCG) 33DJ0dI0D)

i)
5
8
E
0,
=
A
a
+
[+
3
[1]
3
U d
L]

UCIIDWIO| 13430




FIVE YEAR RECORD

2022
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DIPLOMA PLC

10 - 11 Charterhouse Square
London EC1M 6EE

T +44 (0)20 7549 5700

www.diplomaplc.com




